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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

VISION

Be a dominating player in salt Industry & Allied products

MISSION

To produce/supply good quality of salt & value added products.

To accelerate the process of modernization/mechanization of manufacture of salt and
allied products.

Make available quality iodized salt to weaker sections through public distribution
system.

Efficient utilization of resources.

Increase the market share of SSL.




Chairman’s Statement
At the 56™ Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders,

It is an honour and a privilege to present the 56™ Annual Report of your company. The company
started its journey almost 57 years’ back. Your company is the only CPSE engaged in the Salt
manufacturing processes. Your company continues with its task to build business with long term
goals based on intrinsic strength in terms of its brands, quality manufacturing process and customer
relationship.

The past year has indeed been a year of great challenge with the COVID-19 pandemic affecting
economies across the globe, including the Indian economy. However, your company has shown
resilience in dealing with the situation and earned a profit of Rs. 534.50 Lakhs for the year 2020-21
against the previous year loss Rs. 259.27 Lakhs.

The Director's Report on the working of your company, Audited accounts for financial year 2020-21
and Auditor's Report thereon have been with you. With your permission, take them as read. | would
like to underline a few salient features regarding the achievements, constraints and tasks ahead:

Company’s Performance

You as our shareholders have shown great faith and belief in what we are doing and that gives us
the strength and determination to keep exceeding your expectations. | am pleased to inform that
during the financial year 2020-21, turnover of your company has increased from % 2290.26 lakh to
% 2499.15 lakhs. This year company earned a profit of Rs. 534.50 Lakhs against the previous year
loss Rs. 259.27 Lakhs. This is mainly due to salt sold at higher prices and savings in expenditures.
During financial year 2020-21, company has produced 202418 MT common salt and 13832 MT
processed salt as compared to 181596 MT Common Salt and 16341 MT Processed Salt in previous
year. In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has been declared by the company for the year
2020-21.

Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the guidelines
on corporate governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises. During the year, Industrial relations
in your company remained cordial.

Significant Initiatives during the year:

Development of theme based tourism project at Sambhar:

SSL is undertaking the infrastructure development on sustainable basis aligning its objective with
the objective of Gol & GoR regarding promoting tourism at Sambhar Lake and has awarded contract
for creating sustainable infrastructure that includes Planning, Implementation, Operation &
Maintenance of Tourism Activities at Sambhar Lake on Revenue sharing basis. During the year
revenue has been impacted due to outbreak of COVID-19.

Nawa Salt Refinery:

Efforts are being made to run the refinery at its full capacity. To capture the market share and
enhance revenue, strategy is being chalked out to penetrate the products manufactured at Nawa
Salt Refinery into the market with huge quantity. Design of 1 kg packet has been made attractive to
gather attention of customers in the market.

Solar Power Plant:

400 KW capacity has been made operational in Sambhar area on 15" March, 2021, 350 KW
capacity has been made operational at Gudha Salt refinery on 5 April, 2021 and 1000 KW capacity
has been made operational at Nawa on 30" September, 2021.

Procurement of Wagons:
To strengthen the salt production activities, company has procured Meter Gauge Wagons (10 Nos.)

and Narrow Gauge Wagons (10 Nos.) for transportation of salt from M/s Braithwate & Co. Ltd. at
Rs. 19 Lakhs and 15 Lakhs per wagons respectively on FOR delivery.




Up gradation of Gudha Salt Refinery: .
Gudha Salt Refinery was operated much below the rated capacity and the same was also pointed

out by the CAG as non-fruitful. To address this issue, the company has replaced the old d{yer .?nd
repaired other defective parts through open tender at a cost of Rs. 46.38 Lakhs. Post rectification,
the plant is running satisfactory and is expected to produce 60,000 MT refined salt annually.

Future Outlook:

Development of new area for production of salt: .

In order to enhance production capacity of common salt, company is exploring and developing the
untapped huge abandoned areas. Company is developing abandoned area for production of good
quality Pan Salt to be used in Refinery to increase revenue.

Marketing Initiatives: : :
Efforts are being made for capacity building, improving the brand image, introducing value added
products, enhancing geographical reach and geographical tagging of the unique products.

On 20.06.2021, company had launched six new varieties of salts viz namely Kshaar Namak,
Sambhar Namak, Shakambari Namak, Vratahar Namak, FitBalance+ Namak and Kala Namak in
national and international markets and on online marketing sites. Company had launched these new
products in the presence of Hon'ble Governor of Rajasthan, Shri Kalraj Mishra as a Chief Guest.

Company has appointed Padmshree Dr. Sunil Jogi a renowned poet, singer and composer as
company’s brand ambassador. The nomination is free of any remuneration and purely based on
goodwill for the company.

A theme song on Sambhar Salts Limited highlighting its rich heritage and good quality healthy salt
has been created through a specialist agency.

Outsourcing of Refineries:

Company is planning for outsourcing of Nawa Salt Refinery and Gudha Salt Refinery with a view to
enhance the capacity of plants and reduce the cost and earn more revenue.

Systematic Improvement:

Improved the visibility and business presence of the company achieved sales target while working
for larger territorial footprint, wider customer base and high value/quality products.

We are confident about maintaining business momentum and delivering a strong performance in the

coming years with continuous expansion of business in new geographical areas and increasing
customer base.

| take this opportunity to thank the Government of India, various State Governments, officers of
Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Niti Aayog, Bankers, Business Associates, Salt
Commissioner’s office, Railway Board and major customers for their advice and continued support
extended. | am also thankful to all my colleagues on the Board for their valued guidance and
counsel. The officers, staff and workers of the company also deserve thanks for their dedicated work
and.rtooperation. In conclusion, | would like to thank you for sparing your valuable time and to
parﬂcupat‘e in the proceedings, as a shareholder of the company. | look forward to inspiration, help,
Cooperation and assistance from you all in the coming months. | now move to the Director's Report
as well as the audited balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss for the year 2020-21. It is
requested that Director's report as well as the annual accounts be approved and adopted.

A

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
(Chairman & Managing Director)

Place: Jalpur DIN: 08B8%432F

Date: 30.11.2021




DIRECTORS’ REPORT (2020-21)

To
The Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sambhar Salts Limited, Jaipur, we are delighted to present
the 56™ Annual Report of your company along with audited financial statements for the financial year
2020-21.

The company has achieved a top line of ¥ 24.99 crore during the financial year as compared to
% 22.90 crore in the previous year. The company is catering to the salt industry across the length
and breadth of the country for last 57 years. SSL is the only CPSE engaged in the Salt
manufacturing processes.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
The Company’s financial highlights are as provided below:
(X in Lakh)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Revenue from Operations 2499.15 2290.26

Other Income 111.59 228.24

Total Income 2610.74 2518.50

Add/Less: Accretion (+), Decretion of stock(-) (747.99) 14.21

Less: Expenditure for the year excluding depreciation and interest 1958.99 1749.66
(Net)

Adjustments relating to prior period 19.43 (21.70)

Profit before depreciation and interest 1419.17 732.93

Less: Depreciation 321.44 219.67

Profit after depreciation 1097.73 513.26

Less: Interest 563.23 772.53

Profit after depreciation and interest 534.50 (259.27)

Net Profit for the year 534.50 (259.27)

Total Carry forward losses (5297.95) (5832.45)

During the year 2020-21, turnover of your company has increased from ¥ 2290.26 lakh in the
previous year to % 2499.15 lakh in the current year. With this year’s profit, the carry forward losses of
the company as on 31% March, 2021 are ¥ 5297.95 lakhs in comparison to previous year ¥ 5832.45
lakhs. The profit in the current year is due to salt sold at higher prices and savings in expenditures.

Your company continues with its task to build business with long term goals based on intrinsic
strength in terms of its brands, quality manufacturing process and customer relationship. It accords
high priority to rationalizing and streamlining operations to bring reduction in costs.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The Company’s profit for the financial year 2020-21 is mainly due to salt sold at higher prices and
saving in expenditures.

The Authorised and Paid up share capital of your Company remained unchanged during the year at
% 200 lakhs and % 100 lakhs respectively. The share capital of the company is subscribed by
Hindustan Salts Limited, its holding company and Government of Rajasthan in the ratio of 60:40.

SSL was incorporated with an objective to take over the Salt Works, which were earlier owned and
managed by its holding company HSL, at Sambhar Lake. The company has over 90 sq. miles area
at Sambhar, Gudha and Nawa in Rajasthan. The company has diversified the business on many
counts and considerable infrastructure has been added to produce various varieties of high quality
salt to cater to the market demand. It has salt refinery at Gudha & Nawa and process salt plant at
Sambhar. Salt Refinery of 1 Lakh MT of annual capacity has been installed at Nawa. To capture the
market share and enhance revenue, strategy is being chalked out to penetrate the products
manufactured at Nawa Salt Refinery into the market with huge guantity.



http://www.indiansalt.com/SBR.pdf

Comparison of the physical performance of your Company vis-a-vis previous year is given as
follows:-

Particulars Quantity in M.T.

2020-21 2019-20

Production:

Common Salt 202418 181596

Processed Salt 13832 16341

Sales/ Issues:

Common Salt 86004 147673

Processed Salt 11115 14862

Inventory at the close of the year after adjustment:

Common Salt 129644 32925

Processed Salt 848 1246

Refined Salt 3058 1263

PRODUCTION
The production of common salt in FY 2020-21 is 202418 MT as against previous year 181596 MT,
which is a increase of 11.46 %. The production of processed salt has decreased by 2509 MT.

SALES
The Company sold 97119 MT of common salt and processed salt of during the financial year as
against 162535 MT in previous year.

EXPORTS
The company is making all efforts for export of salt in financial year 2021-22.

INVENTORIES
The physical inventory of common salt of the company was 129644 MT at the close of the year
against 32925 MT in the previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31% March, 2021 stood at Rs. 1.00 crore. The Hindustan
Salts Limited and Rajasthan Government hold 60% and 40% of equity shares respectively.

DIVIDEND
In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has been declared by the company for the year 2020-
21.

BORROWING

Borrowing from Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding Company) was ¥ 3576.50 as on 31.03.2021. The
interest accrued/ payable on loan as on 31.03.2021 has decreased to ¥ 3728.82 lakhs as against
% 3805.49 lakhs as on 31.03.2020. The short term borrowing of the company from banks was nil as
on 31.3.2021 against % nil as on 31.03.2020.

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL RESERVES
Your Company has not transferred or proposed to transfer any amount to any reserve as on
31.03.2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review-

Consequent upon relieving of Shri Ashok Das on 05.08.2020, Commodore Kamlesh Kumar
(Retd.) was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director w.e.f. 05.08.2020.

Shri Uday Singh Mina, Director DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner (addl. Charge), GOl was
appointed as Director w.e.f. 24.06.2020.

Shri Anand Kumar, IAS, Principal Secretary, Revenue Department, GOR was appointed as
Director w.e.f. 17.09.2020 in place of Shri Sandeep Verma, IAS.

Smt. Archana Singh, IAS, Commissioner, Industries Department, GOR was appointed as Director
w.e.f. 17.09.2020 in place of Shri Muktanand Agarwal, IAS.




KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act, the key managerial personnel of the
Company are Shri Ashok Das, CMD (from 01.10.2019 to 05.08.2020), Cmde. Kamlesh Kumar
(Retd.), CMD (from 05.08.2020 to 31.03.2021) and Shri Vikas Yadav, Company Secretary.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The independent directors have submitted the declaration of Independence as required pursuant to
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of Independence.

QUALITY & RELIABILITY:

SSL pursues continual improvement in the quality of its products and performance leading to
customer delight through commitment and team work of employees. SSL is committed to deliver
value to its clients through significant investments in quality in process of manufacturing of salt.

DEPOSITS:
The company has not accepted any deposits during FY 2020-21.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 as required under Section
92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is included in this report as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of
this report.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to prevent and prohibit from any
sexual harassment at workplace and redress any such grievance of woman employees as required
under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. No complaint of sexual harassment received during the FY 2020-21.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

As required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars relating to the conservation of energy, technology
absorption, expenditure on research & development and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are:

Conservation of Energy

Energy Conservation measures taken:-
The following steps were taken to minimize the energy consumption.
Use of LED bulbs & Tubes in office premises.
Maximum use of electricity and minimum use of DG set.
Use of maximum sun-light in day time.
Copper blast choke use in Tube-lights.
Switch-off the lights, Computers, A/Cs & other electrical appliances used in organisation
when not in use (Lunch Time).
The streets lights are not in use or minimum nos. are in use on full Moon-Light.
Steps are been taken to replace the old motors with today’s energy efficient motors.
Use of correct load motor. (No under/over capacity motor use)
Introduction of the solar Pumps in various production areas to save electricity.
Capacitor Banks are provided and checked frequently to maintain the power factor.
No use of broken wires/Cables or wire/cable is used with minimum joints to avoid the electric
losses.
Preventive Maintenance of Machines is implemented to reduce the friction in rotary parts
(Oiling/Greasing), which also reduce the power loss and saves energy.
Use of Limit-sensor in Pumps to avoid the unnecessary running of motors.
Light sensors are in implementing in streets lights to save the energy & manpower also.
HT/LT lines connectors, Insulators and jointer-Plates are serviced timely to prevent the
carbon formation on these, which leads to save of electricity.
Proper selection of wire & cable with the load used to save electricity.




Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy Additional investments and

proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of energy consumption-

(i) Solar Power Plant of 400 KW capacity has been made operational in Sambhar area on
15" March, 2021.

(i)  Solar Power Plant of 350 KW capacity has been made operational at Gudha Salt
refinery on 5™ April, 2021.

(i) Solar Power Plant of 1000 KW capacity has been made operational at Nawa on 30"
September, 2021.

(iv) In production of common salt, natural sunlight is used.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL

Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of Production —

Sr. No.

Description

2020-21

2019-20

1

Electricity

(A)

Purchased Unit (Lakh KWH)

21.85

8.05

Total amount (% In Lakhs)

234.44

82.40

Average Rate / Unit in ¥ per KWH

10.730

10.23

(B)

Own Generation

(i)

Generated Unit (Lakh KWH)

0.01

0.01

KWH Unit Generated per Ltr. Of Diesel

0.80

0.62

Cost per Unit

45.53

49.60

Through Steam Turbine Generators Units

Not Applicable

Generated Unit (Lakh KWH)

Fuel Oil / Gas Cost / Unit

Julie Flora Wooden Chips Fuel (Qty. in MT)

1607.7

1288

Total Cost (Rs. In Lakhs)

23.92

22.37

Average Rate (In Rs.)

1488

1737

HSD QOil / Fuel (Qty. in Tonnes)

24060

7100

Total Cost (Rs. In Lakhs)

21.29

5.68

Average Rate (In Rs.)

88.5

80

Furnace Qil (F.O.)

Not Applicable

Qty. (Lakh Ltr.)

Total Amount (% in Lakhs)

Average Rate (z Per Ltr.)

Other / Internal Generation

Not Applicable

Qty. (Ltr.) Mobhil Oll

Total Cost

Consumption per Unit (MT) of Production:

Sr. No.

Description

2020-21

2019-20

1

Consumption Per Unit (i.e. MT) of Production

- Production (MT)

13792

13644

- Electricity (KWH)

58.53

55

- Juliflora wood chips (Fuel)

0.12

0.10

Expenditure on R & D/ Lab Testing (% in Lakhs)

Capital

Recurring

Total

Total R & D expenditure as a Percentage of total turnover

Technology Absorption Adaptation and Innovation

Efforts made for Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.




Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. products improvement, cost reduction,
product development import Substitution etc. NIL

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished:-

a) Technology imported. NIL

b) Year of import. NA

¢) Whether imported technology has been fully absorbed? NA

d) Areas where absorption of imported technology has not taken place, if any. NIL

D. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
(i) Activities relating to export initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new
markets for products and services and exports plans.
NIL

(ii) Total foreign exchange used and earned.
- Earnings in Foreign Exchange.
- Foreign Exchange outgo.




REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR 2020-21

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY:

Your Company believes that for its sustained success, it must maintain global standards of
corporate conduct towards its shareholders, customers, employees, all other stakeholders and
society in general. The Company has always focused on good corporate governance, which is a key
driver of sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation for its shareholders.

The Company believes that corporate governance is not just limited to creating checks and
balances. It is more about creating organization excellence leading to increasing employee and
customer satisfaction and shareholder value. The primary objective of corporate governance is to
create and adhere to a corporate culture of conscience and consciousness, transparency and
openness, to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve the goal of value
creation. The Company believes, it must leverage its human and capital resources to translate
opportunities into reality, create awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and
entrepreneurship at all levels.

Above all, corporate governance must balance individual interest with corporate goals and operate
within accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a sense of justice. Accountability and
transparency are key drivers to improve decision-making and the rationale behind such decisions,
which in turn creates stakeholder confidence.

The Board of your Company constantly endeavours to set goals and targets aligned to the
Company’s vision and mission — To produce/supply good quality of salt & value added products, To
accelerate the process of modernization/mechanization of manufacture of salt and allied products,
Efficient utilization of resources and Increase the market share of SSL.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the company as on 31.03.2021 is as under:

The Board consists of nine directors including one Chairman & Managing Director. The brief
particulars of all the Directors are given below:

Name of Director | Category of Date of Birth

Date of

Qualification Directorship in other

(Shri/smt.)

Directorship

Appointment

companies

CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar
(Retd.)

Chairman & Managing
Director

Chairman &
Managing
Director

15.06.1969

05.08.2020

Graduate

Hindustan Salts Ltd.

Anand Kumar, Principal
Secretary Revenue,
Government of
Rajasthan

Government
Nominee
Director

25.06.1967

17.09.2020

MBA,
B-Tech
(Civil Engg.)

REXCO, RSPFSCL,
RIICO, Saurya Urja Co. of
Raj. Ltd., Essel Saurya
Urja Co. of Raj. Ltd.,
Adani Renewable Energy
Park Raj. Ltd.

Archana
Commissioner,
Industries Department,
Government of
Rajasthan

Singh,

Government
Nominee
Director

26.09.1981

17.09.2020

M.Sc.
(Botany)

RajComp Info Services
Ltd., RRVPNL, RIICO,
RSLDC, RajSICO, Raj.
Export Prom. Council.,
Man Industrial Corp.

Parveen Gupta, Director,
Deptt. Of Heavy
Industry, Gol

Government
Nominee
Director

09.12.1962

22.03.2019

Post
Graduate

HMT Watches Ltd.,
Richardson and Cruddas
(1972) Ltd.,, National
Bicycle Corporation of
India Ltd., HSL

Uday  Singh Mina,
Director, DPIIT cum Salt
Commissioner, GOI

Government
Nominee
Director

11.07.1973

24.06.2020

Post
Graduate

Hindustan Salts Limited




Satyendra Kumar,
(T.T.)
Ministry of Railway

Director

(POL)

Government
Nominee
Director

09.05.1975

15.12.2015

Post
Graduate

Hindustan Salts Limited

Shankar Lal Agarwal

Independent
Director

30.11.1959

21.01.2020

FCA

Hindustan Salts Limited

Hari Mohan Joharri

Independent
Director

12.02.1970

21.01.2020

FCA

Hindustan Salts Limited

Independent

17.03.1964

Bachelor of

Hindustan Salts Limited

Kavita Chaudhary

Director Arts

21.01.2020

MEETING AND ATTENDANCE:

During the financial year 2020-21, three meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the dates
mentioned hereafter 18.09.2020, 15.12.2020 & 18.02.2021.

Whether
Attended
Last AGM

Other
Directors
hips

Name of
Director
(Shri/smt.)

Board Meetings
during respective
tenure of
Directors

Held |Attended
Yes 3 3

Category of
Director

Membership of
Committee of other
Boards

Chairperson [Member
Chairman & - 1
Managing
Director
Government
Nominee
Director
Government
Nominee
Director
Government
Nominee
Director
Government
Nominee
Director
Government
Nominee
Director
Independent
Director
Independent
Director
Independent
Director

CMDE.
Kamlesh
Kumar (Retd.)
Anand Kumar

No

Archana No

Singh

Parveen No

Gupta

Satyendra No

Kumar

Uday
Mina

Singh No

Shankar
Agarwal
Hari  Mohan
Johari

Kavita
Chaudhary

Lal No

No

No

Board Procedure:

The meeting of the Board of Directors are normally held in Jaipur, Rajasthan and are scheduled well
in advance. However, due to Covid-19 pandemic, meeting were held through Video Conferencing
mode. The Company Secretary, in consultation with the Chairman & Managing Director sends
written notice of every Board meeting to each Director. The Board agenda is circulated to the
Directors in advance. The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business
strategies/policies and review the financial performance of the company.




Board’s Responsibilities:
The Board’s mandate is to oversee the company’s strategic direction, review and monitor corporate
performance, ensure regulatory compliance and safeguard the interests of the shareholders.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies/policies and
review the financial performance of the Company. The notice of each Board Meeting is given in
writing to each Director. These Meetings are scheduled well in advance and the notice of each
Board Meeting is given in writing to each Director. The agenda and the relevant notes are sent in
advance separately to each Director and only in exceptional cases the same is tabled at the
meeting. The Board reviews the performance of the Company every quarter vis-a-vis the targets set
by them and helps in the major strategic decisions and policy formulations. The members of the
Board have access to all information of the Company and are free to recommend inclusion of any
matter in agenda for discussion in consultation with the Chairman.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee is committed to good corporate governance with best discharge of its assigned
duties. It is informed that pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of
the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 company is not required to constitute
the Audit Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance of CPSEs issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises dated
14.05.2010, the Board has constituted the Audit Committee to discharge the duties.

Composition of Audit Committee:
Audit Committee as on 31.03.2021 consisted of the following Directors:

1. Shri Shankar Lal Agarwal, Independent Director - Chairman
2. CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.), CMD, SSL - Member

3. Smt. Archana Singh, IAS, Commissioner, Industries Deptt., GOR - Member
4. Shri Uday Singh Mina, Director DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner, GOI - Member
5. Shri Hari Mohan Johari, Independent Director - Member

6. Smt. Kavita Chaudhary, Independent Director - Member

Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance:
During the financial year 2020-21, Audit Committee of the company met on 18.09.2020, 15.12.2020
& 18.02.2021.

Name of the Member Status Category Number of
(Shri/smt.) Meetings attended

Shankar Lal Agarwal Chairman Independent Director
CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.) Chairman | Chairman & Managing Director
Archana Singh Member Part time official Director
Uday Singh Mina Member Part time official Director
Shri Hari Mohan Johari Member Independent Director
Smt. Kavita Chaudhary Member Independent Director

Audit Committee Terms of reference:

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is constituted to assist the Board in fulfilling oversight
responsibilities and to ensure that the framework of internal control, practices, and systems are
robust.




Membership

Chairperson and Members of the Committee

The Committee shall comprise of a minimum of three Directors with independent
Directors forming a majority and majority of the members of the Audit Committee
including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand
financial statements.

One Independent Director having Financial knowledge will be appointed as the
Chairperson of the Committee by the Board.

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Committee, the remaining members
present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.

Reconstitution
The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required.

Secretary

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee and attend all
its meetings.

Quorum

The quorum would be one third of the strength of the Committee or two
Members, whichever is higher.

Questions arising in any meeting shall be decided by a simple majority of votes.
A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be
competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions vested
in or exercisable by the Committee.

Frequency of
Meetings

The Audit Committee should meet atleast once in every quarter. Atleast four
meetings of Audit Committee should be held during the year.

The Chairperson of the Committee or the Chairman of the Board may each
convene meetings of the Committee at any time to consider any matters falling
within this Terms of Reference.

Duties and
Responsibilities

e To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statements is correct,
sufficient and credible;

To review with management, the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board, focusing primarily on;
a. Matters required to be included in Directors’ responsibility statement to
be included u/s sec 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
b. Any changes if any, in accounting policies and practices.
Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by
Management.
Qualifications in draft audit report.
Significant adjustments arising out of audit.
The going concern assumption.
Compliance with accounting standards.
Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;
. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
To review & recommend the Company’s financial policies to the Board for
approval;
To examine the financial statements and the auditors’ reportthereon;
To approve and recommend the annual budget to the Board for approval.
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
To recommend to Board fee for Statutory Audit;
To recommend to Board for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of Internal auditors and any audit related services of the
company;
To review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;
Reviewing with the management Quarterly performance;
To review with the management, performance of external and internal
auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems;
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To review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of

the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the

department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

To review the follow up action on the audit observation of the C&AG audit;

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor,

internal auditor and the Board of Directors;

To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors

into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of

internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the

Board,;

Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and

the Statutory auditor:

1. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
recommendations;

2. Post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To give approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the

Company with related parties;

To take on record CAG Audit Report;

To exercise its powers and carry out its responsibilities as may be required from

time to time under the Whistle Blower Policy;

To address and deal with such other matters as may be delegated by the

Board to the Audit Committee and matters referred under Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION:

It is always the company’s endeavour to present unqualified financial statement. In this regard, the
Auditor has drawn attention under opinion on the Note No 1(b), and 8 of the financial statements in
their reporting under CARO.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of
Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 is not required to constitute the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance of CPSEs issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises dated
14.05.2010 the board had re-constituted the Remuneration Committee on 18.09.2020. Since the pay
scale of the employees of the company is governed by IDA 1997 and CDA 1996, thus CPSE is not
eligible for Performance Related Pay so remuneration Committee is not required to decide the
annual bonus/variable pay pool and policy for its distribution across the executives and non-
unionized supervisors, within the prescribed limits.

Composition of Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2021 is as under:

1. Shri Shankar Lal Agarwal, Independent Director (Chairman)
2. Shri Uday Singh Mina, Nominee Director (Member)

3. Shri Hari Mohan Johari, Independent Director (Member)

4. Smt. Kavita Chaudhary, Independent Director (Member)

GENERAL BODY MEETING:
The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Financial Year Date Time Location

2019-20 17.12.2020 | 04:30 PM | Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area,
Jaipur-302022.
2018-19 04.11.2019 | 02:30 PM | Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area,
Jaipur-302022.
2017-18 28.09.2018 | 11:30 AM | Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area,
Jaipur-302022.




CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board in its meeting held on 30.08.2010 approved the “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for
Board Members and Senior Management” in terms of guidelines on corporate governance in Central
Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Government of India. Pursuant to this Board
members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code on an annual
basis within 30 days from the end of FY and same was placed before board. The certificate of
Compliance is enclosed as Addendum to the Directors’ Report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Being a Government Company, the remuneration of functional director like Chairman and Managing
Director is decided by the Government of India. Government Nominees were not paid any
remuneration. Details of the remuneration of functional directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
company during the year under review are provided in the extract of the Annual Return in Annexure -
A of the Directors’ Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Website

The company'’s website www.indiansalt.com hosts information for investors and all stakehqlders. The
Annual Financial statements of the company are available on the website in a user friendly and
downloadable form.

Official News releases

The company communicates with stakeholders by way of official news releases in electronic and print
media.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 088g 4327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 29.11.2021




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management discussion and analysis statements are attached to this report.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

Your company realizes the criticality of aligning human resource development initiatives with
strategic objectives to achieve organizational goals. Significant steps towards skill development and
capability build-up, talent acquisition, development and retention strategies are continuously
undertaken for being an employer of choice. Human Resource policies and processes of the
company have transformed and evolved over the years in order to stay relevant to the changing
environment, enhancement of organizational agility and ensure compliance with the changing rules
and regulations from time to time.

Your company has 68 employees consisting of 11 executives and 57 Non-Executives at the close of
this financial year 31.03.2021.

RESERVATION OF VACANCIES:

Your company is implementing the guidelines issued by the Government with regard to reservation
of posts for SC, ST, OBC, Physically handicapped (PH) and Ex-Servicemen (Ex-S) as well as for
any other concessions /facilities. The number of SC/ST/OBC/PH employees at the close of the
financial year, in the various categories remained as under:

Group | Total Strength No. of SCs No. of STs No. of No. of PH No. of Ex-
as on 31%" as on 31°% ason 31 | OBCsason | ason 31" | serviceman
March March March 31 March March as on 31°%

March

2021 2020 2021 | 2020 2021 2021 | 2020
11 10 3
11 16 1
3 5 0
43 46 15

Total 68 77 19

Voluntary Retirement Scheme:
During the year no employee/ worker has been voluntarily retired under Voluntary Retirement
Scheme.

Training & Development:

Training and Development program is a vital component for driving excellence through Human
Resource. The Company invests and encourages its employees to acquire newer technical as well
as behavioural related skills for improving quality, productivity and achieve excellence in their
respective areas in order to stay with the change technologies and newer skills.

PROMOTION OF HINDI LANGUAGE:

The Official Language Implementation committee constituted at the corporate office and at the unit
continued their efforts to overcome from the difficulties in the progressive use of Hindi in the
Company. Hindi Pakhwada was observed from 14.09.2020 to 28.09.2020. Various programs and
competitions were held during Pakhwada to create interest among employees in Hindi. The
company has actively participated in the various activities being organized by NARAKAS, Jaipur
during the year 2020-21.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND WELFARE ACTIVITIES:

Your company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) plays a major role in the
development of any country. The Company does not come under purview of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Company has provided all statutory facilities to its employees. The company
is functioning as per the provisions of Factories Act. To provide medical care to the employees and
their dependents and also to the local residents of nearby villages, a well-equipped 25 bed hospital
with qualified doctor and para-medical staff is operational in Sambhar Unit. During the year under
report 13537 nos. of outdoor patients which includes our staff members, bandewals and local people
have been treated at our hospital. Company provide free medical facilities to the regular and work
charged employees.

15




A large sized park is maintained for company employees, their families and also for the general
public. The company is running canteens for the employees and workers on no profit and no loss
basis. Fair Price Shop is being run for providing house hold items of standard quality at reasonable
rates to the company employees on no profit no loss basis and on one-month credit facility basis.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005:

As per the requirements of RTI Act, necessary updated information including the names of Appellate
Authority, Central Public Information Officer and Assistant Public Information Officer of the company
posted on the website. During the year, company addressed 11 RTI applications and 5 Appeals. No
applications remained pending at close of the year.

REDRESSAL OF PUBLIC GRIEVANCES:

Your Company is committed for resolution of public grievance in efficient and time bound manner. In
order to facilitate resolution of grievances in transparent and time bound manner, Department of
Administrative Reforms & Public Grievances, Department of Personnel & Training, Government of
India has initiated web-based monitoring system at www.pgportal.in. As per directions of GOI, public
grievances are to be resolved within specified time period. If it is not possible to resolve the same
within specified time period, an interim reply is to be given. Your company is making all efforts to
resolve grievances in time bound manner.

ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL:

The Company is fully committed to the maintenance of the proper environment at work places.
Besides maintaining the parks already developed, additional plantation of trees has also been
undertaken.

PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVES:
No Presidential Directives has been received during the year.

FRAUD REPORTING:
No fraud on or by the company has been noticed/reported during the year.

EXPENDITURE ON BUSINESS PROMOTION, ENTERTAINMENT, ADVERTISEMENT &
PUBLICITY:

The company has not spent on foreign travel during the year. Expenditure incurred on Business
Promotion and Entertainment was % 0.28 Lakhs (previous year % 1.45 Lakhs) which works out to
0.01 % of the turnover. Expenditure on advertisement and publicity was % 0.29 Lakhs (Previous year
Z nil).

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER:

During the year under review, the contribution / provision made by the company in the form of
various taxes / interest to the National Exchequer, both Central and State, has been of the order of ¥
21.00 lakhs as against ¥ 16.25 lakhs in the previous year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Certificate on Compliance with Condition of Corporate Governance for the financial year 2020-21 is
placed elsewhere in the Annual Report. Information on number of meetings of the Board held during
the year, composition of committees of the Board and its meetings held during the year are
contained in Report on Corporate Governance.

Management reply to observations of Corporate Governance Certificate:
The reply to the observations made in Corporate Governance Certificate for the financial year 2020-
21 is as under:

Meetings of Board: Company is regularly holding Board meetings, however, sometimes due to non-
availability of members, meeting could not be held for want of proper quorum. This year due to
COVID-19, meetings were not held on time. The same shall be taken care of in future.




VIGILANCE:

1. Common Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO) of the rank of Director for REIL, HSL & SSL and IL
looks after the work related to Vigilance matters. For HSL& SSL, he is assisted by
Assistant Manager (Vigilance Officer).

The main areas of work of the Vigilance Department in HSL& SSL are as under-

a) Dealing complaints against the below Board Level Employees of HSL/SSL

b) Periodical review of the Vigilance Matters

¢) Periodical & surprise Inspection of the different areas of the various Department of the
HSL/SSL

d) Interfacing with CVC, CBI and CVO of the MHI to streamline flow of information in respect of
vigilance matters

e) CTE Type Inspections

f) Submission of Quarterly reports to CTE and CVC

g) Preparation of agreed list & ODI List.

The Vigilance Department lays Considerable emphasis on preventive Vigilance and is

promoting the use of the IT to bring about greater transparency.

Vigilance Awareness week was observed from 26th October 2021 to 1st November 2021.

During 1% April 2021 to 30" September 2021, 12 Complaints were received. Out of the same 09

has been disposed off and in 03 Complaints the investigation is in process. 12 Property returns

were scrutinized. 06 surprise/ periodic inspections were carried out.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the period under review, Company had not entered into any material transaction with any of
its related parties. Company's major related party transactions are generally with its holding
company, which is also a government company. All related party transactions were in the ordinary
course of business and were negotiated on an arm's length basis and forms part of financial
statement, attached as a separate section of this Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/ COURTS/ TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:
There is no significant and material orders passed by regulators/courts/ tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEM:

An internal control system is formulated in the Company to ensure reliability of financial reporting,
timely feedback on the achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies,
procedures, rules and regulations safeguarding of assets and economical and efficient use of
resources. The internal auditor which is a Chartered Accountant firm appointed by the Company
continuously monitor the effectiveness of internal controls. The scope of internal audit activity is well
defined in the letter of appointment of internal auditors. The audit committee reviewed the reports of
internal audit submitted by the internal auditor.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Details of Loan, Guarantees and investment as required under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013
forms part of financial statement, attached as a separate section of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The company is not required to have requisite number of independent directors on the board as per
the Companies Act, 2013, however under the Guidelines of Corporate Governance of DPE dated
14.05.2010 company should have independent directors on board and accordingly the
Administrative Ministry has appointed Shri S.L. Agarwal, Chartered Accountant, Shri H.M. Johari,
Chartered Accountant and Smt. Kavita Chaudhary as Independent Directors w.e.f 21.01.2020 for a
period of three years from the date of notification of their appointments or until further orders,
whichever is earlier.




PROCUREMENT MADE FROM MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES DURING 2019-20:

Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) was notified by the Government
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which stipulates that 20%
of total annual procurement of goods and services shall be made by all Central Ministries
/Departments /CPSUs from Micro & small Enterprises (MSEs). Within this percentage, a sub-total of
4% procurement is to be made from MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs. The total value of
procurement during the year 2020-21 is % 8.57 Cr and out of the total value procured from MSME is
2.72Cr.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
report.

VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARD’S REPORT
The management has not voluntarily revised the financial statements or Board’s report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
As per the requirements of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 your directors hereby
declare that:

(i) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31% March 2021, the
applicable accounting standard have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(i) The Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimate that are reasonable prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of 31* March, 2021 and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period.

(i) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and others
irregularities.

(iv) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(v) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable laws and that such systems were adequately and operating efficiently.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
has appointed M/s J.N. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Dausa, as Statutory Auditors for the
financial year 2020-21.

Management Comments on Statutory Auditors’ Report:

The Statutory Auditors, M/s J.N. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Jaipur have given their
unqualified report on the financial statement of the company for the year ended 31% March, 2021,
which is enclosed. However, they have drawn attention under “other opinion”, CARO and qualified
opinion on Internal Controls. The reply of the same as under:-

Emphasis of Matter:

1. Company has already taken the action to invest the outstanding demand against gratuity in
phased manner after reviewing the financial position of company.

2. Company has issued written letters to the concern parties but company till date has not received
confirmation letter as reply from the parties.

Annexure-A - Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016:

1 (b) The work of physical verification of Assets and preparation of draft policy for physical
verification of assets, store etc. was awarded to the CA Firm in 2019-20 and they required to
complete the work in 2019-20 but due to covid-19 the work has not been completed and
adjustments, if any, have not been carried out in accounts of 2020-21. The same will be adjusted in
current financial year. However, company will finalize the policy of physical verification conducted by
committee of officers at regular interval in current financial year.
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(8) It is not possible to repay the loan and outstanding interest to holding company Hindustan Salts
Ltd due to accumulated losses. However, necessary steps are being taken by company for
improvement in performance in coming year by putting up sodium sulphate plant, increasing the
production of common salt and process salt etc. make profit to pay the amount of outstanding loan
and interest in phase manner.

ANNEXURE “C” Internal Financial Controls

(&) The work of physical verification of Assets and preparation of draft policy for physical
verification of assets, store etc. was awarded to the CA Firm in 2019-20 and they were required
to complete the work in 2019-20 but due to covid-19 the work has not been completed and
adjustments, if any, have not been carried out in accounts of 2019-20. The same will be
adjusted in current financial year. However, company will finalize the policy of physical
verification conducted by committee of officers at regular interval in current financial year.

(b) Reply to contents of Annexure D of Auditors Report is as under:

S.
No

Subject

Reply

1

As per order sheet dated 26/11/2020
technical bids were opened on
23/11/2020. And as per technical
evaluation work order for experience,
GST Certificate and CA Certificate were
not submitted by single bidder M/s
Manglam Engineering equipment’s, Nawa
City (Mo. No 8104053007). As per
Telephonic discussion held by member of
purchase committee on 26/11/2020

bidder had asked for further seven days
for submission of shortfall documents.

On the basis of assurance that was provided by the
responsive bidder to submit the required documents
and to reduce the Administrative lead time of an
already delayed project and to avoid the Financial
losses to the company, the case was processed
only to accord the necessary approvals. However
no work order was issued or intended to be issued
without receipt of necessary documents. It may be
noted that the tender was subsequently cancelled
and retendered.

However, procurement committee had
technically qualified the same single

bidder M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment on 26/11/2020 without taking
the shortfall document.

e |t is not clear from the order sheet why
the bidder was technically qualified on
the same date without taking the
shortfall documents even after the
bidder have given the assurance to
submit the same within seven days.

On the basis of assurance that was provided by the
responsive bidder to submit the required documents
and to reduce the Administrative lead time of an
already delayed project and to avoid the financial
losses to the company, the case was processed
only to accord the necessary approvals. However no
work order was issued or intended to be issued
without receipt of necessary documents. It may be
noted that the tender was subsequently cancelled
and retendered.

e |t is not clear that under which rule or
terms and conditions the committee
can allow submission of shortfall
documents on telephonic discussion.

At any instance if any clarification is required, the
company utilizes all the available and speedy modes
of communication. As the place being remotely
located and in the absence of INTERNET
connectivity at many locations, Telephonic
communication was found to be the most suitable
mode of communication. Further in COVID-19 times
it is difficult particularly in the rural areas to
communicate through Internet or through the written
communications. Despite all kindly pay heed that the
subject mentioned TENDER eventually was
cancelled.




e |t is surprising how the bidder was
technically qualified without taking
the shortfall document.

On the basis of assurance that was provided by the
responsive bidder, In order to reduce the
Administrative lead time of an already delayed
project and to avoid the Financial losses to the
company, The file was processed to accord the
necessary approvals. However no work order was
issued. Further in the absence of Non submission of
the required documents the TENDER was
cancelled.

No one particular personnel can be made
responsible for such qualification as all the
decisions on the subject matter are deliberated by
the duly constituted committees for the betterment
of the organizational interests.

Commercial/financial bid were opened
on 27/11/2020 and later it was found as
mentioned inthe note sheet that “It has
gone beyond the estimation of Rs.25
Lakh.”

Purchase committee had decided to re-
tender with diluted technical and
increased estimatedvalue.

When the NIT NO.774 Notification was released on
27.10.2020 with last date for BIDDING as
10.11.2020, the quotation for Estimation of price
was received from M/S Janta Engineering, Mumbai
which was Rs. 25,00,000/-, however when the
TECHNICAL BID was opened it was found that the
guotation from the Interested bidder i.e, M/S Janta
Engineering, Mumbai failed to participate in the
subject tender and received only one offer from M/S
Manglam Enggineering. The Lowest Rate obtained
in the same tender was Rs. 64,06,500/-. However,
as this rate was more than the estimated rate, the
tender was cancelled and later the committee
reviewed the technical and commercial parameters
and simplified the same for obtaining better
response in retendering. Therefore with a view to
obtain better response, realistic pricing was done by
the committee and the rates was re-fixed to Rs.46,
50,000/-. It is also noted that the rates of stainless
steel in Oct 20 and Jan 21 had 37% of escalation.
And again On the 7™ JAN-2021 considering the
INFLATED STEEL RATE and COVID-19 situation
prevailed with the deadliest II ND WAVE budgetary
estimates were revised by the committee. Therefore
gualification criteria were simplified only with an
intent to receive better response as the project was
getting delayed due to poor response from market
thereby causing huge loss to the company.

Tender was refloated and as per UTC
report dated 29/01/2021 technical bids
were opened on25/01/2021 in which total
three bidders named a.) Shree Shyam
fiber industries (MO. No. 8504887924)
b.) M/s Manglam engineering
equipment’s (MO.N0.9828603810) c.)
M/s Jeen Bhawani Const. co. (MO. No.
9828603810) had filled the tender.

Shortfall documents were found in all the
three bids and telephonic intimation was
given by the member/s of purchase
committee to the bidders for submission
of shortfall documents.

Out of all three bidders two named as
M/s Shree Shyam fiber industries (MO.
No. 8504887924) and M/s Jeen Bhawani
Const. co. (MO. No. 9828603810) had

At any instance if any clarification is required, the
company utilizes all the available and speedy modes
of communication. As the place being remotely
located and in the absence of INTERNET
connectivity at many locations, Telephonic
communication was found to be the most suitable
mode of communication. Further in COVID-19 times
it is difficult particularly in the rural areas to
communicate through Internet or through the written
communications. Despite all kindly pay heed that the
subject mentioned TENDER eventually was
cancelled.




not submitted the required documents
and were non-responsive after
telephonic intimation therefore purchase
committee has decided not to qualify
them in technical bid.

In response to telephonic intimation M/s
Manglam Engineering equipment’s had
submitted the pending documents. As per
submitted documents the bidder was
having work experience of 3 years instead
of minimum requirement of 7 years and
average turnover was Rs. 9,75,890/-
instead of minimum requirement of Rs.
13,95,000/-

Committee has decided to qualify the
bidder M/s Manglam Engineering
equipment’s with following comments on
note sheet dated 29/01/2021.

On 11/03/2021 GM (works) Mr. Ram
Kumar wrote on note sheet ‘Agreed with
the URC recommendation and forwarded
fo HTC".

However, as per same UTC report dated
29/01/2021 committee have taken the
decision for retendering due to non-
submission of  aforesaid required
documents by all the bidders including M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment which
was qualified by the same committee
members as per forgone another foregoing
UTC report dated 29/01/2021.

The first report submitted by UTC had to be amended
as the approval for the same was not received from
HTC and had few deviations. Therefore the second
note was initiated recommending the cancellation of
the tender, which was eventually approved.

Presently, the paragraphs and Note sheets are not
numbered. The same is noted for action in future and
will be strictly adhered to.

Further, the tender was again refloated on
24/03/2021 and conditions of turnover

were relaxed by considering the turnover
of F.Y. ending 2021 duly attested with CA
certificate to provide the undue benefit to
M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment.

As the single responsive bidder submitted the three
years balance sheet i.e 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21
and the CA Certified Certificates which were required
documents for the contract, therefore no undue
relaxation was given to any firm.

Finally, the work order was issued in the favor
of M/s Manglam Engineering equipment’s
(Prop. Surendra Pal) at a price of Rs.
46,37,990/-(inclusive of GST @ 18%) ignoring
the following major discrepancies and
irregularities of the bidder

a) As per submitted pan card of the bidder DOB
of Shri Surendra Pal (Prop. M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s) is 15/July/2001

As the owner of the company was an Adult at the time of
award of contract.

b) As per CA Certificate dated 16/03/2021
issued by M/s J. VAISH & Co having UDIN
21414526AAAABX9527 on the basis of
submitted income tax return filled and other
relevant documents and information turnover for
contact work and trading of the bidder M/s
Manglam Engineering equipment’'s (Prop.
Surendra Pal) is as under

Accounting Year Turnover on
Construction
(Rs.)

2018-19 9,75,890

2019-20 17,32,500
2020-21 (Till Feb. 2021) | 20,71,220

Total 47,79,610
Average Turnover 15,93,203.33

Certificate of experience was given for the Contract Work
and the same was subsequently verified by the UTC.




c) As per work completion certificate
issued by M/s Krishna Chem Food Pvt.
Ltd dated 20/08/2018 bidder had
satisfactory installed the 15 TPH
capacity static type salt dryer. However,
as per submitted PAN Card the bidder
was only 17 years old on date of
issuance of certificate.  Purchase
committee has also confirmed with
issuing authority and according to them
work done was found satisfactory.

Contract has been awarded to the firm and not to
the individual; therefore during the assessment of
past experience, the concerned firm’s credibility was
ascertained.

d) As per work order dated 10/04/2018
issued by M/s Krishna Chem Food Pvt.
Ltd work was allotted to M/s Manglam
Engineering equipment’s (Prop.
Surendra Pal) for installation of fluid bed
dryer in Rs. 45,00,000 and that to be
supplied within 2 months. Same was
also confirmed by the member of
purchase committee during technical
evaluation. On the other hand, as per
PAN Card bidder becomes major on
15/07/2019 and also as per CA
certificate issued total turnover of F.Y.
2018-19 was only Rs. 9,75,890
(construction activity)

Considering the point no. (c) And (d)
above, the contract entered between
bidder and Krishna Chem Food Ltd
stands void-ab-initio as per Indian
Contract Act, 1872 and ex post facto use
of completion certificate of the same
contract s not justifying the
aforementioned qualification criteria.

The reply of 13 (c) above. In relation to ascertaining
the financial credibility, the duly authenticated
financial documents and the figures mentioned in
the same i.e Rs 9,75,890/- are only considered.

e) As per work order no. 001/05/2019-
2020 dated 22/11/2019 issued by Nirmal
network Inc. for installation of various
machineries within 8 months for total
amount of Rs. 95,50,000 which was also
verified by the member/’s of purchase
committee and on the other hand
turnover as per CA Certificate for entire
F.Y. 2019-20 and 2020-21 up to Feb 21
is only Rs. 38,03,720 (Construction
activity)

It is pertinent to mention that the subject work has
been satisfactorily completed in a time bound
manner, thereby saving considerable loss from the
downtime of the plant and the installed GSR
STATIC FLUID DRYER is producing the desired
results as on date.

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL:

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has decided not to undertake supplementary audit of the
financial statements of the company for the financial year 2020-21.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

There was no employee of the company who received remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under Section 197 of the Act hence the information may be treated as NIL.




APPRECIATIONS & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the valuable assistance given by various
Departments and Ministries of the Government of India particularly Department of Heavy Industry,
Department of Industrial Policies and Promotions, Department of Public Enterprises, Niti Aayog,
Ministry of Finance, Planning Commission, Salt Commissioner and Railway Board, etc. The Director
also Acknowledge the support extended by the various Departments of the Government of Rajasthan.
The Directors also express their sincere gratitude to all the customer of the company for their
unstinted support and confidence reposed in the company. The Directors are also thankful to the
Principal Director of Audit (Industry & Corporate Affairs), Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors,
Bankers and all other stakeholders for their continued co-operation.

In conclusion, the Board places on record its appreciation of the individual and collective efforts,
commitment and loyalty of the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(CM amlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
. DIN: 08884327
Place: Jaipur
Date: 29.11.2021




Annexure to Director’s Report
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Industry Structure and Developments: During the year 2020-21 the value of production increased
from ¥ 2276.05 lakhs in previous year to  3247.14 lakhs in current year, which is 42.67 % Increase.

Strength and Weakness: Company is having about 90 Sg. mile land area, part of which is utilised
for production of salt and other activities. Company having known brand in salt production & only
company to produce Kyar Salt. Having experienced and dedicated manpower at grass root level.
Company owned large production area which requires huge resources to manage, failing to same
resulting into encroachments. Due to construction of anicates, free flow of water into lake has been
hindered. Presently, IDA 1997 pay scales pay scales are applicable in the company therefore
retaining qualified manpower is a challenge. Company is facing problems of Illegal borewells used
for theft of precious brine and encroachment of our production area is another concern area and in
this direction company is taking major efforts to remove illegal borewells and disconnect illegal
power utilisation in and around these areas.

Opportunities and Outlook: Company is having sufficient infrastructures for increasing the
production. Company has expedited revival of our abandoned production areas and making efforts
for development of untapped areas for production of salt by various means. Company is enhancing
market share through value added products like double fortified salt, low medium salt etc. Company
can diversified into Renewable Energy Business for installation of Solar Power Plant. Company is
also exploring opportunities for export of salt.

Segment wise or Product wise Performance: Company is only producing and selling Common
and process Salt. The turnover of common salt was increased by 4.49 %. The turnover of processed
salt is #480.42 Lakhs against previous year figure of # 358.20 Lakhs.

Risks Management: The Company is only producing and selling common salt and process salt.
The numbers of private players have now ventured into production of salt in nearby area and
company have to compete with them. However, due to our good quality of salt, company is able to

compete with private parties.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy: Company has appointed a Chartered Accountant
firm as Internal Auditor to carry out the Internal Audit activities. Internal Audit process is designed to
review the adequacy of internal control checks in the systems covered all significant area of the
company. Company has an audit committee who is also reviewing the report of internal auditors.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance: The Company
has incurred profit of # 534.50. Lakhs compared to loss of # 259.27 Lakhs in previous year.

PROJECTS AND PROGRAMMES DURING 2020-21:

Development of theme based tourism project at Sambhar:

SSL is undertaking the infrastructure development on sustainable basis aligning its objective with
the objective of Gol & GoR regarding promoting tourism at Sambhar Lake and has awarded contract
for creating sustainable infrastructure that includes Planning, Implementation, Operation &
Maintenance of Tourism Activities at Sambhar Lake on Revenue sharing basis. During the year
revenue has been impacted due to outbreak of COVID-19.

Nawa Salt Refinery:

Efforts are being made to run the refinery at its full capacity. To capture the market share and
enhance revenue, strategy is being chalked out to penetrate the products manufactured at Nawa
Salt Refinery into the market with huge quantity. Design of 1 kg packet has been made attractive to
gather attention of customers in the market.




Solar Power Plant:

400 KW capacity has been made operational in Sambhar area on 15™ March, 2021, 350 KW
capacity has been made operational at Gudha Salt refinery on 5" April, 2021 and 1000 KW capacity
has been made operational at Nawa on 30" September, 2021.

Procurement of Wagons:

To strengthen the salt production activities, company has procured Meter Gauge Wagons (10 Nos.)
and Narrow Gauge Wagons (10 Nos.) for transportation of salt from M/s Braithwate & Co. Ltd. at
Rs. 19 Lakhs and 15 Lakhs per wagons respectively on FOR delivery.

Up gradation of Gudha Salt Refinery:
Gudha Salt Refinery was operated much below the rated capacity and the same was also

pointed out by the CAG as non-fruitful. To address this issue, the company has replaced the old
dryer and repaired other defective parts through open tender at a cost of Rs. 46.38 Lakhs. Post
rectification, the plant is running satisfactory and is expected to produce 60,000 MT refined salt
annually.

FUTURE PLAN OF ACTION:

Development of new area for production of salt:

In order to enhance production capacity of common salt, company is exploring and developing the
untapped huge abandoned areas. Company is developing abandoned area for production of good
quality Pan Salt to be used in Refinery to increase revenue.

Marketing Initiatives:

Efforts are being made for capacity building, improving the brand image, introducing value
added products, enhancing geographical reach and geographical tagging of the unique
products.

On 20.06.2021, company had launched six new varieties of salts viz namely Kshaar Namak,
Sambhar Namak, Shakambari Namak, Vratahar Namak, FitBalance+ Namak and Kala Namak in
national and international markets and on online marketing sites. Company had launched these new
products in the presence of Hon’ble Governor of Rajasthan, Shri Kalraj Mishra as a Chief Guest.

Company has appointed Padmshree Dr. Sunil Jogi a renowned poet, singer and composer as
company’s brand ambassador. The nomination is free of any remuneration and purely based on
goodwill for the company.

A theme song on Sambhar Salts Limited highlighting its rich heritage and good quality healthy salt
has been created through a specialist agency.

Outsourcing of Refineries:
Company is planning for outsourcing of Nawa Salt Refinery and Gudha Salt Refinery with a
view to enhance the capacity of plants and reduce the cost and earn more revenue.

Systematic Improvement:
Improved the visibility and business presence of the company achieved sales target while working
for larger territorial footprint, wider customer base and high value/quality products.




Annexure- A
FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31% March, 2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN U14220RJ1964G01001188

Registration Date 30.09.1964

Name of the Company Sambhar Salts Limited

Category [/ Sub-Category of the | Private Company/ Union Government Company
Company
Address of the registered office and | G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur,
contact details Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

Telephone No.: 0141-2771448

Fax :0141-2771449

Email: information@indiansalt.com

Whether listed company No

Name, Address and Contact details of NA

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:

S. | Name and Description of main products | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
No. | /services Product/ service company

1. | Common salt 01932 80.78

2. Processed Salt 01932 19.22

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. No. | Name and address of the company | CIN/GLN | % of shares held

Holding Company {Section 2(46)}

1 Hindustan Salts Limited, G-229, | U14220RJ1958G0I1001049 60
Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur,
Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

IV. (A) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end
Shareholders beginning of the year of the year
Demat [Physical| Total [% of Totall[Demat|Physicall Total | % of
Shares Total
Shares

A. Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF

b) Central Govt.



mailto:information@indiansalt.com

c) State Govt. (s)

d) Bodies Corp

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any Other

Sub-total(A)(1):-

2) Foreign

g) NRIs-Individuals

h) Other-Individuals

i) Bodies Corp.

j) Banks / FI

k) Any Other....

Sub-total(A)(2):

Total of A= A(1)+A(2):

B.Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flis

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1)

2. Non Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian

(i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i)Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual

shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others(Specify)

Sub-total(B)(2)

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)()+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
and ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)




(B) Shareholding of Promoters

S.
No

Shareholder’
s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of

the year

Shareholding at the end of the

year

No. of
shares

% of total
Shares of

the

company

% of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total shares

No. of
shares| Shares

of the

% of total

company

% of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total

% change
in
shareholdi
ng
during the
year

sh

ares

Hindustan
Salts Limited

6000

60

0

6000 60

0

Governor of

Rajasthan

4000

40

0

4000 40

0

(C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr.
No

Particulars

Sh

areholding at the

beginning of the year

Transaction during the year

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

% of total

company

shares of the

Date

Increase/
Decrease in
share holding

Reason

No. of % of
shares total
shares
of the
compa
ny

of the year

At the beginning

10000 100

Allotment

year

At the end of the

10000

100

10000

100

(D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRS):

Particulars

beginni

Shareholding at the

ng of the year

Transaction during the year

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Date

Increase/
Decrease
in
share
holding

Reason

No. of % of total
shares |[shares of
the
company

At the beginning
of the year

0

Allotment

0

At the end of the
year

0

(E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr.
No

Particulars

beginn

Shareholding at the

ing of the year

Transaction during the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during

the year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Date

Increase/
Decrease in
share holding

Reason

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Shri Ashok Das

1

0.01

18.09.20

Decrease

1 0.01

CMDE. Kamlesh
Kumar (Retd.)

18.09.20

Increase

1 0.01




V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not

the beginning of

3576.50
3805.49

3576.50
3805.49

Total (i+ii+iii)

7381.99

7381.99

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
- Addition (i) Principal
(ii) Interest
- Reduction
(i) Principal

(ii) Interest

76.67

76.67

Net Change

76.67

76.67

Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not due

3576.50
3728.82

3576.50
3728.82

Total (i+ii+iii)

7305.32

7305.32

VII.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(X in Lakhs)

SI. No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total
Amount

1

CMD

WTD

Manager

2

Sh Ashok Das
(from 01.10.19to
04.08.20)
CMDE. Kamlesh
Kumar (Retd.) (from
05.08.2020 to
31.03.2021)

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17 (1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

13.09

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961

3.65

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act,1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)




B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Z in Lakhs)

S.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Total
1 Independent Directors Sh. S.L. Sh. H.M. | Smt. Kavita

Agarwal Johari Chaudhary

eFee for attending Board/committee | 33000 33000 33000 99000
meetings

e Commission

» Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

eFee for attending board/committee
meetings

+ Commission

e Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
(Z in Lakhs)

Key Managerial Personnel Total
CEO CS CFO

Particulars of Remuneration

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per Sec 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 5.78

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, -
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s17(3) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

Others, please specify

Total

XII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made. If
companies description| Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/Court] | any(give
Act Compounding fees details)
imposed
There were no penaIty/punishment/compounding of offences for breach of any section of Companies Act

against the company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the year.

5.78

5.78 5.78

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 29.11.2021




Code of Conduct-Compliance Affirmation

This is to confirm that SSL has laid down a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all the Board
Members and Senior Management of the SSL and the code is posted on the company website. The
Board and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the said Code for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2021.

For Sambhar Salts Limited

(CMDE Kam{é§h Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 29.11.2021




H NITIN & ASSOCIATES B-230, Mulyi_yu I‘\J;ng'
“ Practicing Company Secretary Near Kardhani Sh(')ppmg Cenl re
Jaipur - 302017

Mob: +91-9887725624

cs.canitin@gmail.com

ANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPLI

To
The Members,
Sambhar Salts Limited

Jaipur

Dear Sir,

| have examined the compliances of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sambhar Salts
Limited (‘the Company’)for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2021, as stipulated in the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance by Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by Government of
India, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Department of Public Enterprises(‘the

Guidelines’).

y and also examined the

I have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the said Compan
d to me for my review in

relevant records and documents maintained by the Company and furnishe
this regard.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Management of the
Company. My examination was limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof on
test basis, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate

Governance.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanation given to me, |
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions as stipulated in the Guidelines in all
material respect except the Meeting of Board at least once in every three (3) Months.

I further state that | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and
it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company and
also such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Practicing Com

M.No. F 9632, CP 11673
UDIN: F009632C001467286
Date: 18/11/2021




COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) () OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THIE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2021
The preparation of financial statements of Sambhar Salts Limited for the year ended 31
March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the

Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Thesfatutory

auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section I39(5) of the
Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under scction
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 08

September 2021,

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have decided not to conduct

the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Sambhar Salts Limited for the year ended

31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

ood)

Principal Director of Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

E{L{n{;ﬁs e

Place: New Delhi
Date: Z22-/0- 2cz/
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J. N. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

pé:732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,
@l Kothi, Jaipur- 302015 Ph, : 2743895, 9001893895
Mobile : 9314893895 4 E-mail : jnguptaca@icai.org
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4 Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Sambhar Salts Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

T 99 9 9

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Sambhar Salts Limited (“the
company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31*March 2021, the Statement of Profit an
Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatio
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
except, the aforesaid financial statement gives the information required by the companies ac{ °
2013(“the act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with th
accouriting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3 I'
March, 2021 and its Profits and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards art
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with eghical requirements that art
refevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
- requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

" 1. We draw attention to Note No.5.1 Regarding Death cum Retirement Gratuity (Retiremere!t
Benefit), to the financial statement, which describes that Liability for Gratuity as on 31.03.2021
was provided for 118.73 lakhs in the books, but no investment was made as required under AS-

15.
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2. The Company has not obtained confirmation of their balunces of Trade Receivables & Trade
Payables and there is no system of seeking confirmation Jrom such parties. Therefore, we are
unable to comment on the realizability of such advances/dues, due to uncertainty involved.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate
Governance und other Annexure to the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsnb:hty is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financia! statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. The other information is not available as on date of signing the report,
and hence we do not report on the information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report

thereon.
Management’s Respensibility for fhe Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these ~financial statements that
give & true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the acccunting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation' of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to'cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company s financial reporting

ﬂ) 4EH N
7 fﬁ: o

process.




Auditor's Responsibility for the Andit of the  Flwnnclnl Stitoments

Our objectives are to obtain reasonablo assuranco about whothor tho  inanolal tntomonts m  whole
are free from material misstatement, whether duo to fravd or error, and 1o o an mditon’ foport
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is u high lovel of assurance, but I not o Pt toe
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always dotoet o mutorlal misstatoment when It
exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or orcor and aro considerod materdnl if, Individunl or In the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economio doolslons of users taken on
the basis of these  financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we oxercise professional Judgment and maintal
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the  financinl statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedurvs rosponsive to thoso risks, nnl
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion, The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intontional omisslons
misrepresentations, or the cverride of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the nudit in order o desig
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has ndoquate
interna! financial controls in place and the operating offectiveness of such controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used ‘and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures mado by the management.

Coﬁclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the  financial statementsor,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our uditor's report. However,-future ovents or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluaie the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transaction and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.’

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that, individually 0f in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably km)wlcdgcnl‘)lu flscr.ol the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative tm.:tors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated in with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication. :

_ Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements E

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.

. As requiféd by_ Seétion 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper bocks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; : «

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by

this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

' In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply ‘with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014;

In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate affairs, Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to
disqualification of Directors, is not applicable to the Government Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “C”. Qur report expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.




In pursuance to the Notification No, G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate affairs, Section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to Managerial
Remuneration, is not applicable to the Government Company,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021 under Note No.22
“Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments to the extent not provided for”.

The Coinpany did not have any long - term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material force able losses.

The Company is not required {o transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

The reporting on disclosure Relating to specified bank note is not applicable to the
company for the year ended March 31, 2021

3. As required by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “B” a statement on the
compliance to the Dircction issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India in respect of
the company. ’

For JN Gupta & Co Date: 08/09/2021
Chartered Accountants '
(FRN: 006569C) | Place: Jaipur =~

S
CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta |
Partner
M. No. 400438
UDIN: 21400438AAAANF5754




Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal & Regulatory

Requirement’ of our report of even date)

Report on Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) of the Sambhar Salts Limited

(“the Company™)
I. In respect of Company’s Fixed Assets:

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full partlculars including quantitative details and situation of the

fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the company has no written policy and procedures for physical
verification of the fixed assets at reasonable interval and during the year no physical
verification has been conducted by the company. Hence not commented on discrepancies

if any.

(c) Accoiding to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination of the title deeds of freehold and leasehold immovable
- property situated at Sambhar Lake as at the balance sheet date, we found the dlscrepancy

details are as follows: -

fS. vParti'culars Titles of : Present Status =~ Remarks

No. | Property
1 Land Leasehold ; (1).2648 Acres of land | No original
y is under dispute with | documents

Govt of Rajasthan, (2) | provided,
424.80 acres of land is | but  only

| Encroach by Pvt salt | photocopies

producer : | provided

Freehold I (1) 16.41 Acres of | No original
' land under dispute at | documents
Rawan tibe sambhar | provided,
lake, matter is pending [ but ~ only
with court photocopies
(2) 18.12 Acres of | provided
land under dispute at
Bag shed, matter
pending with railway
jodhpur




() 2X71 Acres of
land under dispute
shaadpur Gudha salt,

matter with  pending
with Nawa court for
cnucalmn

No lease dead has been exeented by Govt. of Rajasthan for allotment of said leaschold land, but the
company has provided only photocopies relating to V. T, Krishnamacharya award in which it is a
mention that Govt, of' Rajasthan has given the land for 99 years lease to the Govt. of India for Sambhar
Salts Limited on Annual lease rent of Rs, $.50 lakhs per annum and Gowt. of India should set up a
company namely Sambhar salts Ltd. and Sambhar salts ltd, will be allotted free shares in favor of
Govt. of Rajasthan to the extent of 40% of the paid-up capital of the company from time to time, no

lease agreement

has been executed so far with Govt. of Rajasthan, hence not commented on the title of land in name

of company.,

ln respect of'its inventories:

(8) The inventories have been physically veritied during the year by the management at
reasonable intervals except that of Salt as reported in Note A.1l to the financial
statements,

(b) In our opinion .md according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has m: intained proper records and no material discrepancies were noticed on

physical verification.

In respect of the Loans, secured or unsecured granted by the company to companies, firms or

3.
other parties in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.

(a) (i) According to the information & explanations given to us, the company has not granted
any loan to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

(b) The company has also given advances in nature of loans to its employees which are
recovered regularly together with interest if applicable as per company policy.

The provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grants of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees and securities is not applicable being a Government

Company.

The company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under, and as such the
question of compliance under the Companies Act or any other directives or orders does not arise.




6. As informed to us the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under subsection (1) of the section 148 of the Act.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of beoks of accounts, records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, GST/ sales-tax,
service tex, value added Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and any other statutory dues with
the appropriate authority in India and there were no dues of income tax, GST/Sales Tax, Service
tax,Custom Duty, excise duty or value added tax out standing on account of any dispute for more
than 6 months from the date on which they becomes payable

)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the compﬁny has
not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings from Bank and Government except default
in repayment of loans to Holding Company i.e., Hindustan Salts Ltd of Rs. 7305.32 Lakh

. (Including interest Rs.3728.82 Lakh). The Company does not have any loans or borrowings frora
financial institutions and has not issued any debentures.

. The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3(ix) of the order is

not applicable.

. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given by the
management, no fraud by the company and no fraud on the company by its officers or employees

has been noticed or reported during the year.

. As the company is Government Company and specific exemption has been given from Section -
197 of the Act, hence reporting under clause 3(xi) of the order is not applicable

. As the company is not a Nidhi Company, hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the order is not

applicable.

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company is in.
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable; for all transaction with the
related parties and the details of related parties transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

. During the year the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, during the year the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
to its directors and hence provision of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.




16. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve bank of Indja

Act, 1934,

ForJ N Gupta & Co Date: 08/09/2021

Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 006569C) Place: Jaipur

o S

CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner

M. No. 400438

UDIN: 21400438AAAANF5754




Annexure B referred to in paragraph 7 of our report of even date to the members of
SAMBHAR SALT LIMITED on the account of the company for the year ended 31* March,

2021.

S. No

Directions

Action Taken

Impact on financial
Statement

(i). Whether the Company has system
in place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications,
if any, may be stated.

Company is not
having the "system in
place to process all the
accounting transaction
through IT system
however Accounting
Entry being done
through Tally ERP 9.

Not ascertainable

(ii). Whether there is any restructuring
of an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest
etc. made by a lender to the company
due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact

may be stated.

There is no
restructuring of an
existing loan or cases
of waiver / write off of
debts/ loans/ interest
etc. made by a lender
i.e., Hindustan Salts
Itd. Holding company
to the company due to
the company inability
to repay the loan.

Not ascertainable

funds

(iii). Whether .
specific

received/receivable  for
schemes from Central/State agencies

| were properly accounted for/utilized

as per its term and conditions? List the
cases of deviation

Company is  not
received / receivable
the fund for specific
scheme from Central
Govt.& State Agency
except plan scheme,

for .payment of
pension of ex salt
department employees
through
Salt [Ltd. Holding
Company and which
was properly account
for and utilized as per
its term and condition

~ Hindustan’

Not ascertainable




ANNEXURE “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SAMBHAR SALTS
LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31st March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the company for the year ended and as on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Charted
Accountants of India (ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,

as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Guidance Note, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial reporting. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require the we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was -

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 2ll material respects

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining and understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assesses
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

T
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to Provide
Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, is reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company,
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s Assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over finansial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control inadequate because of charges in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

" Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 'audit, the following
material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2021 :

@) The company has No written policies and procedures for periodical verification of "fixed assets
and inventories and also during the under consideration no phys:cal vergf' ication of fixed

assets has been conducled by the company.

Internal Control System: of the comp(my with regards to Tender Evaluation, Tender -
Processing, Cost-Benefit Analysis, Estimation of Tendering Cost, Adequacy & Effectiveness
of Procurement Process and various other matters related to Procurement is not operating

effectively as per Annexure D.

In our opinion, except for the effects / possible effects of the material weakness described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained , in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

. We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above.in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2021 fi /;anc:a{ statements of
. ty \
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the Company, and these material weakness does not affeet our opinion on the financial statements of

the Company.

For J N Gupta & Co Date: 08/09/2021

Clufrtered Accountants
(FRN: 006569C) Place: Jaipur

— A

CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner

M. No. 400438

UDIN: 21400438AAAANF5754




Annexure-D

Observations in with regards to Tender Evaluation, Tender Processing, Cost-Benefit Analysis
Estimation of Tendering Cost, Adequacv & Effectiveness of Procurement Process and various

other matters related to Procurement

We have visited Sambhar Salts office at Sambhar Lake, Jaipur for Statutory Andit of Sambhar Salts
limited for the FY 2020-21. During the course of our visit and evaluating the internal control of the
company with regards to Tender for designing, manufacturing, supply, installation, testing and
commissioning of new static fluid bed salt dryer unit having capacity of 12 TPH for Gudha Salt
Refinery, we have observed some deficiencies and inadequacy in the system. Our detailed
observations are as under:

!. A per order sheet dated 26/11/2020 technical bids were opensd on 23/11/2020. And as per

technical evaluation work order for experience, GST Certificate and CA Certificate were not

submitted by single bidder M/s Manglam Engineering equipment’s, Nawa City (Mo. No

_ 8104053007). As per Telephonic discussion held by member of purchase committee on
26/11/2020 bidder had asked for further seven days for submission of shortfall documents.

. However, procurement committee had technically qualified the same single bidder M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment on 26/11/2020 without taking the shortfall document.
e It is not clear from the order sheet why the bidder was technically qualified on the -

same date without taking the shortfall documents even after the bidder have given
the assurance to submit the same within seven days.
It is not clear that under which rule or terms and conditions the committee can allow
submission of shortfall documents on telephonic discussion.

. It is surprising how the bidder was techmcally quahﬂed without taking the shortfall

document.

. Commercial/fi nancnal bld were opened on27/1 172020 and later it was found as mentloned in
the note sheet that “/t has gone beyond the esnmatxon of Rs.25 Lakh.”

. Purchase committee had decided to re-tender with diluted technical and mcreased estimated.
value.

. Tender was refloated and as per UTC report dated 29/01/2021 technical bids were opened on
25/01/2021 in which total three bidders named a.) Shree Shyam fiber industries (MO. No.

8504887924) b.) M/s Manglam engineering equipment’s (MO.N0.9828603810) c.) M/s Jeen
Bhawani Const. co. (MO. No. 9828603810) had filled the tender.

6. Shortfall documents were found in all the three bids and telephonic intimation was given by
the member/’s of purchase committee to the bidders for submission of shortfall documents.

. Out of all three bidders two named as M/s Shree Shyam fiber industries (MO. No.
8504887924) and M/s Jeen Bhawani Const. co. (MO. No. 9828603810) had not submitted




the required documents and were non-responsive after telephonic intimation therefore
purchase committee has decided not to qualify them in technical bid.

. In response to telephonic intimation M/s Manglam Engineering equipment’s had submitted
the pending documents. As per submitted documents the bidder was having work experience
of 3 years instead of minimum requirement of 7 years and average turnover was Rs.

9,75,890/- instead of minimum requirement of Rs. 13,95,000/-

. Committee has decided to qualify the bidder M/s Manglam Engineering equipment’s with
following comments on note sheet dated 29/01/2021.

i o @ S wt fifver eeme wyge wv RY oy ¥ od RY W
DrRf-smy @ e W wy Wil grr Rt wecehiat 5 Ww&

Tt B gra wewhd ¥ o o gat ¥ v wolt wwial o womy or - i
Feltaorer Fard o ¥ TES I urad W T ¥ 5 saw adf M/s,Manglam: Engineering
Equipments, Nawa City -2t Sar2) gmf & v 2wv orf Rt ot ‘o e @i
Mariglam Engineeiing Equipments; Nawa City aft yrforifay

. On 11/03/2021 GM (works) Mr. Ram Kumar wrote on note sheet ‘Agreed with the URC
recommendation and forwarded to HTC*".

10. However, as per same UTC report dated 29/01/202] committee have taken the decision for
retendering due to non-submission of aforesaid required documents by all the bidders
including M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment which was qualified by the same committee
members as per forgone another foregoing UTC report dated 29/01/2021.

11. Further, the tender was again refloated on 24/03/2021 and conditions of turnover were
relaxed by considering the turnover of F.Y. ending 2021 duly attested with CA certificate to
provide the undue benefit to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment. - -

" 12. Finally, the work order was issued in the favor of M/s Manglam Engineering equipment’s
(Prop. Surendra Pal) at a price of Rs. 46,37,990/-(inclusive of GST @ 18%) ignoring the

following major discrepancies and irregularities of the bidder

a) As per submitted pan card of the bidder DOB of Shri Surendra Pal (Prop. M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s) is 15/July/2001

b) As per CA Certificate dated 16/03/2021 issued by M/s J. VAISH & Co having UDIN

21414526 AAAABX9527 on the basis of submitted income tax return filled and other
relevant documents and information turnover for contact work and trading of. the bidder M/s

Manglam Engineering equipment’s (Prop. Surendra Pal) is as under

Turnover on “Construction” (Rs.)

9,75,890
17,32,500

Accounting Year
2018-19
2019-20




2020-21(Till Feb. 2021) 20,71,220
Total 47,719,610

Average turnover | 5,9},2-63‘:1}‘ -

c) As per work completion certificate issued by M/s Krishna Chem Food Pyt, Ltd dated
20/08/2018 bidder had satisfactory installed the 15 TP capacity static typo salt dryer.
However, as per submitted PAN Card the bidder was only 17 years old on dato of issuanco
of certificate. Purchase committee has also confirmed with issuing authority and according
to them work done was found satisfactory.

As per work order dated 10/04/2018 issued by M/s Krishna Chem Food Pvt. Ltd work was
allotted to M/s Manglam Engineering equipment’s (Prop. Surendra Pal) for installation of
fluid bed dryer in Rs. 45,00,000 and that to be supplied within 2 months. Same was also
confirmed by the niember of purchase committee during technical evaluation, On the other
hand, as per PAN Card bidder becomes major on 15/07/2019 and also as per CA certificate
issued total turnover of F.Y. 2018-19 was only Rs. 9,75,890 (construction activity)

Considering the point no. (c) And (d) above, the contract entered between bidder and Krishna
Chem Food Ltd stands void-ab-initio as per Indian Contract Act, 1872 and ex post facto use
of completion certificate of the same contract is not justifying the aforementioned

qualification criteria.

As per work order no. 001/05/2019-2020 dated 22/11/2019 issued by Nirmal network Inc.
for installation of various machineries within 8§ months for total amount of Rs. 95,50,000
which was also verified by the member/’s of purchase committee and on the other hand
turnover as per CA Certificate for entire F.Y. 2019-20 and 2020-21 up to Feb 21 is only Rs.

38,03,720 (Construction activity)

Considering the above circumstances, we conclude that Work allotted for designing, manufacturiug,
supply, installation, testing and commissioning of new static fluid bed to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s was without verifying and substantiating the validity of documents submitted by bidder,
which evidently indicating inadequate and deficient internal control system for evaluating and

analyzing the procuremeat process in the company.

For J N Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 006569C)

-
CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner =S
M. No. 400438




rJ N Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

- E732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,
* Lal Kothi, Jaipur- 302015 Ph. : 2743895, 9001893895
(" Mobile : 9314893895 + E-mail : jnguptaca@ical.org
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Annexure-E

Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of Sambhar Salts Limited for the year ended
31 March 2021 in accordance with the directions/sub-directions issued by the C&AG of India under
Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have comphcd with all the

Directions/Sub-directions issued (o us.

D D8 DDD B B

Date: 08/09/2021

=)

For JN Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 006569C) Place: Jnipur

-
CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner
M. No. 400438




ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

SAMBHAR SALT LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR
2020 - 2021




Sambhar Salts Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021
" In Lakhs
Particulars Note Figures as on Figures as on
No 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

S.No.

I.  Equity & Liabilities

(1) Shareholders’ Funds
a) Share Capital : 100.00 100.00
b) Reserves & Surplus . (4,235.70) (4,768.61)

(2) Share application money pending allotment

(8,135.70) (3,668.61)

(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 545.80 &
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) i i
(c) Other tong Term Liabilities & o
(d) Long-Term Provisions 202.13 21004

747.93 1,085.24

(4) Current Liabilities

(a) Trade Payables 439.34 51063
(b) Other Current Liabilities 3 7,197.72 6,818.14
(c) Short-Term Provisions

7,637.06 7,328.77
TOTAL - 4,249.30 3,745.40

II. Assets
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment .
(i) Tangible Assets 1,652.75 1,063.93
(ii) Intangible Assets . 0.06 0.08
(iiii) Capital work-in-progress . : 17.43
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development -
{b) Non-Current Investments - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) ’ - -
(d) Long-Term loans ard Advances - -
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 126.60 154.58
1,796.82 2,228.46

(2) Current Assets
(a) Current Investments - -
(b) Inventories 1,421.13 75594
(c) Trade Receivables 17.36 1033
(d) Cash & Cash Equivalents 602.98 517.62
(e) Short-Term Loans & Advances ; 0.64 0.50
(f) Other Current Assets 410.37 23255

2,452.48_ 1,516.94
TOTAL 4,249.30 3,745.40
Cash Flow Stateraent
Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts A 22&23

AQ}:\A_L é’é———____—_\*—-
(Vika\?Y/ndnv) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agarwal] (CMDE Kaffilesh Kumar(Retd) )
Company Secretary GM(F&A) Director Chairman_ and Managing Director

DIN 07182357 DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even dats annexed hereto

For J N Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 006569C

(Jagdish Narain Gupta)

Place : Jaipur Partner
Dated: 0§ lo 9|20 2)  Membership No. 400438

UDIN! 1Y 00Y23 AARANFS 1<y




Sambhar Salts Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

* In Lakhs

Particulars Note For the year For the year
No. 2020-21 2019-20 |

Revenue

Revenue From Operanons 2,499.15 2,290.26
Other income 111.59 ©228.24

Total Revenue (I + II) : 2,610.74 2,518.50

Expenses

(a) Changes in Inventories of F.G., WIP & Stock in Trade (747.99) 14.21

(b) Employee Benefits Expense ' 317.87 377.00

(c) Finance Costs h 563.23 772.53
(d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 321.44 219.67

(e) Other Expenses h 164112 137266 - -

Total Expenses . 2,095.67 2,756.07

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
(III-1V) . 515.07. (237.57)
Exceptional items - -
Prior Period Adjustments ' T 19.43 (21.70)
Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V-VI) 534.50 © (259.27)
Extraordinary Items - -
Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII) ) . ‘ 534.50 - (259.27)-
Tax Expense: :
(1) Current Tax .

-(2) Deferred Tax
(3) Eariier year Tax/(Reversal)

Profit for the year (IX-X) : {259.27)
Earning Per Equity Share ' $ (259.27)
Equity shares of face value of Rs.1000/- each

(1) Basic - B - (0.03)
(2) Diluted _ ' (0.03)

Number of shares used.in computing earnings per share ‘ e
(1) Basic , 10,000
(2) Diluted : 1 10,000
Cash Flow Statement '

Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts A 22823

—— '
(Vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agarwal) * (CMDE Kam! Kumar(Retd) )
Company Secretary GM.(F&A) Director Chairman and Managing Director
) DIN 07182357 DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For J N Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 006569C

""'C-“h’t'——-
(Jagdish Narain Gupta)

Place : Jaipur Partner
Dated : a-z,oj Mz, . Membership No. 400438

UDFN ! 2)Y00Y 28 ARAANFC Y
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Sambhar Salts Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Particulars

2020-21

* In Lakhs

2019-20

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit/Loss before Tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation
Interest
Profit from fair price Shop
Capital Reserve

Provision For Leave Encashment & D.CR.G.

Profit from Sale of Assets

Assets Written off

Interest Income from TDR ete.
Operating Profit before working capital changes
Change in working Capital

Trade receivable

Other current Assets

Inventory

Trade and other payables

Other bank balances

Working Capital Loan

Cash generated from operations
Adjustments for direct tax paid .
Net Cash Flow from Operative Activities
Cash Flow from investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets & Capital Work in Progress

Interest received
Proceeds from sale of Assets
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from long term borrowing
Net proceeds from Govt
Interest /Expenses
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Net changes in Cash and Cash equivalent

534.50

323,36

563.23
0.20
(1.79)
(8.71)

(32.78)

(7.03)
(149,98)
(665.19)

308.29
(130.62)

80.31
3278

(328.50)

(563-.23)

1,378.01

(C44.53)
733.48

733.48

(891.83)
(45.26)

(259.27)

219,81
77253
0.08

(2.13)

(39.23)

(3.67)
(81.27)
(52.78)
572.01
(24.90)

54,06
39.23

(388.60)

(772:'53) ’

Cash and Cash equivalent at the begining of Fin, Year _ 61.88
Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of Fin. ear. : 16.62 |

409.39
1,10118

1,101.18

(1,161.13)

)T : of this FDR. of Rs. of 9.22 Lakhs pledge with SBI, Sambhar (Prevlous Year Rs.8.72 Lakhs) and FDR of Rs. 557.11 Lakhs pledge wnth PN8 (Previou
:29 .93 Lakhs)

s year Rs.

¥+(" "3 Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Xnd re(.t Method set out in Accounting Standard 3 - Cash Fiow Statement issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountents of India.
—)'(’ ~dudesTDRmore than 3 months Rs 570.36 in Previous Year Rs. 440 73..a.~hs

(Shanksr Lal Agarwal) ‘ ‘' |CMDE &wmmn

Chairman and Managing Director
. DIN -08884327

(Sandeep Kumar Tak)
GM(F&A) Director

| SOmpany Secretary
W DIN 07182357

}’ / v : » in terms cf our report of even date annexed hereto

For J N Gupta & Co
( Chartered Accountants
B Firm Registration No. 006569C
¢ B
ﬂ ‘ (Jagdish Naraln Gupta)
I’lac. Jm'pur Partner
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NOTE No: - A - SIGNIFICIANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON
315" MARCH, 2021.

Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost
convention and in accordance with the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India except where a specific treatment Is

prescribed.
2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumption that
_ affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of Financial Statements and the results of operation during the
reporting perjod end. Although these estimates are based upon Management's
best knowledge of current event and actions, actual result could differ from these

estimates. :
Valuation of Inventories

(1) Stores & Spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

(2) Released material and scrap are valued at estimated net realizable value.

(3) Hospital and Canteen equipment are being valued after writing off 20% of
opening balance and those added during the year exceeding Rs 750/-.
Loose tools, Hospital & Canteen equipment costing up to Rs 750/- purchased
during the year are charged to the revenue account.

(4) Salt stocks are being valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less.
The old salt stocks are being valued at cost/selling price of that year cr
current net realizable value whichever is less.

(5) Work-in-Process is valued at cost cn the estimated quantity based on the
depth
and density statement of salt precipitated in Pans at the close of the year.

(6) Stock of Fair Price Shop is valued at Cost and net realizable value whichever

is Less.
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and

on hand and short term deposit with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and Maturity more than 3 Months are shown in Others bank balances
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Retirement Benefits

(1) Pension

~ The Payment of Pension with regard to penslonary charges for the staff
absorbed in the company from Salt Department is being paid from the
Grant-in-Aid recelved from Department of Heavy Industries Govt. of Inda
New Delhi is passed on to Pension Fund Trust.
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6.

(2) Gratuity

Gratuity is administered by a separate irrevocable Trust which has taken
L.I.C. Policy covering all the eligible employees except Bundewals -
Company's piece-rate workers, and Company's eligible daily paid and
seasonal workers in whose case the liability is provided as per the payment
of Gratuity Act. Demands made by the Trust including the Annual Renewal
Premium of the L.I.C. Policy after taking 1% October of the year are
charged to Prof‘ t & Loss Account.

Leave Encashment

The Liability for leave encashment due up to the end of the Accounting Year
has been provided on the assumption that such benefits are payable to all
employees at the end of the Accounting Year.

Fixed Assets & Depreciation

(1) Fixed Assets are stated at cost (including expenses on erectlon and
commissioning) less depreciation.

(2) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided consistently on Diminishing Balance
Method on pro rata basis in accordance with the over useful life of assets under
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of Gudha Jhapog dam,
being depreciation charged in 40 years on straight line method. No
depreciation has been charged in the case of assets already depreciated to the.
extent of 95% or more. However, 100% depreciation has been provided on the
Assets costing Rs5000/- or less acquired during the year.

(3) Depreciaticn on Gudha Jhapog Dam has been charged on straignt line method
(SLM) in 40 years as per decision dated 26-09-1980 of Board of Directors

Borrowing Cost: -

Interest and other costs in connection with the borrowing of the funds to the
extent related/attributed to the acquisition/construction of qualifying fixed assets
are capitalized up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use and

other borrowing costs are charged to Profit & Loss Account.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(i)  INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Intangible assets that are required by the company, which have define
useful life, are recognized at cost subsequent measurement is done at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses , cost
includes any directly attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the

assets ready for its intended use
OPT4 S
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DERECOGNITION

An intangible assets is derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected frem their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal
of an item of intangible assets are determine by comparing the processed
from disposal with the carrying of intangible assets and are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss accounts

AMORTIZATION

Cost of software recognized as intangible assets is amortized on straight line
method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years which ever is less.
Other intangible assets are amortized on straight line method over a period
of legal right to use or life of the related plant which ever is less

Grant in Aid:

(1)Against the completed Capital/Development work is transferred to Deferred
Capital Grant-in-Aid. The depreciation on subsidized assets is being charged to
Deferred Capital Grant-in-Aid and Profit and Loss Account in the ratio of Grant-
in-Aid received and cost borne by the Company. .

(2) Against Kacha works is directly credited to Profit & Loss Account.

Provision for Wastage on Salt Stocks _

The Physical verification of salt heaps on accurate and reliable basis is not “easible
because of the irregular shapes of salt heaps. Actual wastages are adjusted as and
when heaps are finally cleared. The provisions are imade for wastages @ 5% of the
quantity produced/stored during the finaicial year and @2.5% per annum on tha
opening stock in respect of heaps not finally cleared after adjusting the excess

provision if any on heaps finally cleared during the year.

Apportionment of Corporate Office Expenses

(1) The Corporate Office common expenses, depreciation and interest (including
Chairman and Managing Director's remuneration) and receipts has been
apportioned 75% to the Company and 25% to its Holding Company
(Hindustan Salts Ltd.) as certified by the Management and Auditors of the

Holding Company. .

The Chairman & Managing Director's remuneration is apportioned in the ratio of
75% and 25% between Company and Holding Company respectively.

(2) There is a common Chairman & Managing Director for Hindustan Salts Ltd.
(Holding Company) and the Company. In the absence of any specific mention
in the terms of his appointment as regards sharing of the remuneration the
same is apportioned @ 75% to the  Company and 25% to its Holdi
Company. -

(3) The restrictive use of Company's chauffeur driven Car for the Compa
Chairman & Managing Director against payment of Rs 2000/- per month hy&
not been considered as a perquisite in his hands and as such the same has not
been disclosed as per requirement of Schedule-111, Part-II, of the Companies'
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Prior Period Adjustments

In respect of the transactions pertaining to the period prior to the current
accounting year, the Company- follows the practice in the conformity with the
Accounting Standard.

Research & Development

Research and development Cost (other than cost of Fixed Assets acquired) are
charged as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. '

Taxation

The Company provides for current income tax at the rate specified under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liability is
calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are
recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty of its realization. At .
each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are revived
to ascertained realization. ‘

Provision For Bad and Doubtful Trade Receivables and Advances

Trade Receivables and Advances Outstanding for more than 3 years are reviewed .
at the close of the year and provision made on case to case basis in case of
uncertainty in the realisation of outctanding amount, in the opinion of the
management. '

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accerdance with the indirect method prescribed
in Accounting Standard AS-3 on 'Cash Flow Statement'.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. In case
there is any indication of impairment based on Internal/External factors, an
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. '

Write off of Deferred Revenue Expenditure

As per practice in vogue, the deferred revenue expenditure is being written off in
five equal annual instalments beginning from the year in which such expenditure
are incurred. :




Preliminary and Project Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on projects is shown as other non-current assets and will be
charged / capitalized in the year in which it is decided by the management to
implement the project. Otherwise, in case, the management decides not to
implement / close: the project, expenditure on such project is charged to the
statement of Profit & Loss for the year in which such decision is taken.

20. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation and measurement for
recognized, when there is present obligation as a-result of past events and it is
probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities, if
material, are disclosed by way of notes. :

b




Notes on Finnunelal Statement for the yenr ended 31 st Mareh 2021
The Previous Years Figures have been vegrouped / veclassified ,Wherever neeessary to confiem to the enrrent yenr
presentation.
' In Lakhs

‘ AL : ; Figures ny on Flgures ny on
¢ R 0 *:zm“' N RO LRt J1-Mur21 J1-Mar-20
Authorised
20,000 Equity shares of Rs, 1000/-each 200.00
(Previous year 20,000 Equity shares)

Issued,Subscribed and Paid up
10,000 Equity shares of Rs.1,000/-each
(Previous year 10,000 Equity shares)

Note:The company has issued the above shares ns under:
* The above shares are alloted as fully-paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash
** 6,000 shares of Rs. 1,000/ ench fully paid up to the Holding company viz Hindustan Salts Limited (in its own name or in the name of it
Nominees) in consideration of taking over of Assets and Liabilities of Sumbhar Salts Unit s on 1.10.1964
***.4,000 shares of Rs. 1,000/- each fully paid up to the Rajasthan Govt. aginst their Royalty Rights in terms of
V.TKrishnamachari Award :
* In Lakhs
0 S & Surplus < Figures ns on Figures as on
SRRLEL RN 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

A. Capital Reserve :
Opening Balance 1,041.94 ' Y 1,041.94

Add: Current Year Transfer - Ll .

Closing Balance : 1041.94

B. Deferred Capita! Grant .

Opening Balance 21.06
Add: Current Year Transfer -
21.06

Less: Adj.as depreciation less charged in Early Years -
Less: Adjusted as depreciatioa 1.80 o
19.27

C. Surplus

Opening Balance (5,832.45) (5,573.18)

Addition / (Deletion) for the year 534.50 (259.27) )
(5,297.95) (5,832.45)

D. Surplus with Fair Price Shop 1.04 0.84

Total 4,235.70) (4,768.61)

** In Deferred Capital Grant a/c amounted Rs. 1.80 lakhs is related to adjustment of depreciation on the assets of which are subsidised

by the Gowvt. Grants. :
*** The whole amount of Surplus with fair price shop is related to the seprate entity which is operated by the company for the benefit

of the employees

" InLakhs

Figures as on Figures as on
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Loan from Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding company) 545.80 874.40
Add: Accumulated Interest duc on above - 545.80 - §74.40

Total l 545.80 l ’ I ‘ 874.40 |




* In Lakhs

i Note No 4:- Other Long Term Liabilities ¢ =i - Figures as on Figures as on
i T B Ao N S B 4 JI-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

(a) Trade Payable
(b) Others

" In Lakhs

Figures as on Figures as on
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

(A) Employces Benefits

1. For Death Cum Retirement Gratuity
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add:Provided during the year

Less:Payment/Adjusted during the year
Total (1)
2. For Leave Encashment
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add:Provided during the year

Less:Payment/Adjusted during the year
Total (2) 83.40
Total A (142)
(B) Others :
1. For Wastage of Stock of Salt
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add: Provided during the Year

~

S

i

Less : Wastage on final clearance of
heaps during the year
Less : Excess Provision written back

M

)

Deducted from Stock in Trade as per contra
Total (1)
2, For Wastage of By-Product/ Processed Salt
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add ; Provided during the Year
Less: Adjusted during the Year

-~

)

Deducted from Stock in Trade as per contra
Total (2) -

TotalB (I+2) B -1
ot

* In compliance of Accounting Standard 15 in respect of employees benefits, company has provided gratuity liability as per actuarial valuation.
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" In Lakhs

mote‘\"nG l"-l °\,~“3' v TR N Figures as on Figures as on
R R A 31-Mar21 31-Mar-20
Trade P.n).lblu
Sundry Creditors
Acceptances .

For Goods 123.91 153.22

For Expenses 168.02 117.81
For Others 14741 439.34 239.60 | 510.63

The required information recuried under the Micro,small and medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 is given in Note n0.25(11) other
notes of Accounts.

" In Lakhs

Figures as on - 3 Tigures as on
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Maturlty ofLong term Debts

Loan from Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding company) 3,030.70 2,702.10 .
Add: Interest accured and due on Temm Loan from Holding Compazy 3,7128.82 6,759.52 _ - 3,805.49 6,507.59
Others Payable ( Holding Company) '
Due to Hindustan Salts Limited (Holdmg Company) o 122.75

Others Payable ' S
Advance from Customers 157.24 143.06
158.21 119.93

47.56

Security Deposits

| . 7,197.72 l

6,818.14

Figures as on

Figures as on

31-Mar-20

‘31-Mar-21

S SO
In case of connnumg default ason the balance sheet
date in repayment of Loans znd interest with respect to above

1. Period of Default

2. Amount of Default

Totai Loan from Holding Company

Total Loan ( Payable in 5 Yearly Instalment)
Less: Long Term Debts

Balance overdue Current Matursities

11021 Years 1to 20 Years

3,576.50 1 3,576.50
545.80 874.40

l 303070

b
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4 e receivables
(including trade receivables on deferred
credit terms)
Secured, considered good
Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful
trade receivables (as par last

(b) Deferred Revenue Expenses

* In Lakhs

IFIGURES AS ON

31-Mar-21

FIGURES AS ON |
31-Mar-20 N

() Project Expenses (Including Solar Project)

(As taken value & certified by the Management)

(A) Stores & Spare Parts
at Cost
Released Material & Scrap
(at estimated net realisable value)

(B) Loose Tools
(at Depreciated value)
Hospital & Canteen Equipments
(at Depreciated value)

(C) Stock in Trade
(at cost/net realisable value
whichever is less) .
Salt
Less: Provision for Wastage

Processed Salt
Less: Provision for Wastage

By-Product
Less: Provision for Wastage

(D) Work in process
(at cost)

(E) Stock of Fair Price Shop

R 1es
of tender received

FIGURES AS ON

FIGURES AS ON-

31-Mar-21

31-Mar-20

68.28

10.05
Sub Total (A)

Sub Total (B)

Sub Total (C) 1,011.62

Sub Total (D) 330.76

Sub Total (D)

114.75 .

10.05




" In Lakhs

adcR ; FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON

e R R P R AR 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
M. re than Six Months :
Secured Considered good 042 2.59
Considered doubtful e Sis :

0.42 s

Other Debts
Secured Considered good 16.94 7.74
Considered doubtful :

16.94 7.74
? 17.36 10.33
Less : Provision for doubtful debts - 17.36 - 10.33

Total | 17.36 | I 10.33 I

* The Debit and Credit balance of parties, Salt Department and Government Department are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

* In Lakhs

FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Cash & Stamps in Hand

With Schedule Banks ; : E
In Current Account . . ) 61.72
In Term Deposits : s o 1631 __ - 6172

In others (Term Deposit More than 3 months) 570.36 440.73
Cheque in Transit ' _ s -
Securities of Staff,Contractors & Others as per :
contra in term deposits (including Nil for staff) 16.00 15.01

602.°8 : 517.62

" In Lakhs

; FICURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
e Gt 31-ar-21 31-Mar-20
Advances to Staff
Balarnce with tl.e Salt Commissioner,Govt.
of India for cess on Salt

* In L.akhs
FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
-~ 31-Mar-21 ~ 31-Mar-20
10.77 11.92

Security Deposit with Other Govt. Deptt. _ _
& Public Bodies 71.19 70.90

Recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to be received
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances
' 138.55
Advance Income Tax .
Income Tax Deducted at Source
i) Earlier year -
ii) Current year
11.69 11.18

Total . 410.37 232.55

The "Recoverable in cash or kind” includes NIL (previous year Rs.NIL lakhs) paid and debited to the suppliers for supply of materials not
confirming to the specifications and hence not taken in the Store Purchase Account.




" In Lakhs

Note No 15 ;. Revenue From Operations

Revenue

For The Year

For The Year

2020-21

2019-20

Common Salt
Domestic Sale
Export Sale

Processed Salt
Domestic Sale
Export Sale

2,018.73

480.42

2,499.15

1,932.06

358.20

2,290.26

" In Lakhs

Note No 16 :- Other Income

For The Year

For The Year

2020-21

Income
Interest
On Term Deposit
Other interest

Other Receipts
Misc. Receipts

Rezuvery on account of Electricity and P
Profit on sale of Assets (Net)

Adjustments/ Transfers

Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts Written back

Sundry credit balances written back

Wastages on final clearance of heaps written back

lakhs and Rs. NIL,Rs.37.19 Lakhs & Rs. NIL respectively).

and o OWeT

2019-20

6.49
102.95

228.24

Other income/adjustment includes Rs.4.38 lakhs on account of penalty & forfeiture of Security Deposit NIL on account of sale of scrap,
assets and released matenal , Rs.42.60 Lakhs on a/c of Receipt from Tourism Activities, NIL on a/c of Faciliation Fee (previous years Rs.8.47

Other receipts (Includes Sales, Transfer and adjustment of Fixed assets, Surplus,Unserviceable and dead stock articles etc.

" In Lakhs

Note No 17 :- Change in Inventories

For The Year

For The Year

2020-21

Opening Stock

Common Salt
Processed Salt
By-Products

. Work in Process

Closing Stock

Common Salt

Processed Salt

By-Products

Work in Process
Accretion(+)/Decretion(-) In Stock

141575

2019-20

364.10
47.46
028
270.13

268.64
83.76
0.28
315.08

[ (747.99)]

W ’%%




" InLakhs

Bote No 18 : Employee Benefits Expenses

For The Year J

For The Year
2020-21

2019-20 |

Salaries & Allowances

Leave Encashment (Including payment of Earned leave
for earlier years)

Leave with wages

Children Education Allowance

Bonus

Death cum Retirements Gratuity
Employer's Contribution to Provident Funds
Deposit Linked Insurance Premium
Admin Charges on Provident Fund & EDLI
Liveries (Uniform)
Compensation to Labour

177.74
9.90

16.17

19.65
39.69
49.55
2,09
2,09
0.82
0.17

317.87

180.94
6.85

6.44
1212
124.09
42,01
1.94
194

0.07

* In Lakhs

Note No 19 ;- Finance costs

For The Year

For The Year

2020-21

2019-20

Interest ; .
On Cash Credit/Overdraft Limit/Other
On Term Loans

4.88
767.65

[ 78]

™ InLakhs

Note No 20 :- Other Expenses

For The Year

For The Year

2020-21

2019-20

(A) Manufacturing Expenses  (Refer Note No 20.1)
(B) Repair & Maintenance (Refer Note No. 20.2)
(C) Corproate Office Expenses (Refer Note No. 20.3)

(D) Townskip Expenses (Refer Note No. 20.4)

( E) Provision & Wastage (Refer Note No, 20.5)
( F) Administrative Expenses {Refer Note No.20.6)
(G ) Selling & Distribution Exp. (Refer Ncte No.20.7)
( H) Other Misc. Expenditure (Refer Note No. 20.8)

Total

20.1 Manufacturing Expenses
Manufacturing & Excavation Charges
Manufacturing of Process Salt (PSP}~
Manufacturing of Refined Salt (GSR)
Manufacturing of Refined Salt (NSR)
Blectricity & Power Charges -

Lease Rent
Mtc & Runnirg of Loco & Diesel Shunter

20.2 Repair & Maintenance
Building

Plant & Machinery

Other Repairs

Maintenance of P. *Way

775.00
141.8
183.82
46.48
4968
3124
12840
16.18

X

14.60




" InLakhs

For The Year

203 Corporate Office Expenses For The Year
2020-21

2019-20

0.46
033
0.01
12,66
20.66
94.07
6.58

Administrative charges on Provident Fund
Bonus

Children Education Allowance

Employer's Contributions to Provident Fund & EDLI
Leave Encashment

Salanies

Group Gratuity Insurance Premium (GGI)

Remuneration to Managing Director
Salaries & Allowances
House Rent

13.09
3.65

—————

Repairs & Maintenance
Office & Other Administrative Expenses

Entertainment/Business Prorotion
Insurance ’
Postage, Telegram & Telephones
Printing & Stationery
Participation in Seminar (Parliamentary committee) -
Travelling expenses
Directors
Others
Legal & Professional Charges

Reimb. of Medical Expenses
Social Welfare Expenses
Water Supply charges

Selling & Distribution Expenses

Depreciation
Electricity Charges

Less: Managing Directors Office Receipts

Misceilaneous Receipts
Tend.r Fees

0.40
0.29
0.01
11.44
9.45
106.97
16.03




" In Lakhs

For The Year

For The Ye,

204 Townehin
QWnship Expenses & Other Social Overhead 2020-21

2019-20

Township Expenses
Depreciation 0.03
Maintenance of Building 6‘79
Sanitation Expenses 1007
Water Supply Charges 11 .33
Less : Revoveries e
House rent
Water Supply ___g;j
9.09
Other Social Overhead
Depreciation 0.10
Dopalion 1 the Public School, Hospitals 0:03
Reimb. of Medical Expenses to employees & Hospital
Expenses 15.18
ial;{:;s & Allowances ete. of Hospital/Welfare & School
Staff' & CSR
27.98
— ‘ 43.29
-Hospital Receipts 100 A

J . A
Note: Electricity and water Supply charges could not be segregated and hence not disclosed seperately

20.5 Provision & Wastage
For wastages on stock of salt

Normal Provision on Salt stock required
Add: Wastages determined on clearance of heaps
Add:Excess provision found on Final Clearance of Heap

Less : Opening Balan.e
Debited to Profit & Loss Account 46.50

Total | 46.50 I
subject to investigation/approval of Approprisate Authority.

20.6 Administrative Expenses
Printing & Stationary Charges
Postage ,Telegram & Telephones
Rates & Taxes
Entertainment & Business Promotion
Travelling Expenses
Director's Fee,T.A. & Meeting Expenses
Legal & Professional Charges

Payment to Auditors

Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

TA/ DA Expenses

Internal Auditor's Remuneration
Internal Auditor's Remuneration
Intemal Auditor’s T.A/D.A. Exp.
Filing Fee
Insurance Charges
0.EM
Maintenance of Circuit House

Less:Guest House Receipts

0.03
1.57
12.49
11.47
25.56

10.45
0.35
10.80

0.1
0.03

10.05
22.64

32.83
1.11

—

49.68

49.68

In view of Accounting Policy No. 7, wastages of 1,380.356 MT Salt valuing Rs. 10.10 Iacs found during the year has been adjusted




20.7 Selling & Distribution Expenses

For'the Yenr
2020-21

Advertisement & Publicity
Despatch Charges

Free Samples

Discount Account

Packing & Forwarding Charges

20.8 Other Misc. Expenditure

Bad Debts & Other Debit Balance Written Off’
Less: Written off out of provision

Research & Development Expenses

Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts Exp.
Penalty / Damages (Including demand on TDS)
General Store Written Off

Grand Total ‘

530
001
58,08
92,11

2,62
6.71

46.29

L4112

" In Lakhe
o The Yenr
_ 201920

12,12
0,08
A045

64515

* in Lakhe

Note No 21 :- Prior Period Adjustments

For The Year

For The Year 4

2020-21

2019-20

Expenses | Income

Expenses | {ncome

Employee Benefit Expenses

Manufacturing Expenses

Corporaie Office (Prior Period Exp/Income)
- Repair & Maintenance

Township & Other Social Overhead

Administrative Expenses

Selling & Distribution Expenses

Payment to Auditors

Payment of Income Tax

Excess Piovision written back

Deprecation .

Excess Interest charges on Term Loan by E0lding Co, written back

Others (Misc) Income

Net Income(+)/Expenses(-) on account of prior period adjustments

1.50 5275

452
059 015
071

0.95

1.00
.80
0.07
0.03
1.00
0.68

21.85

Total [f

WIS s




Note No. 22- Contingent Liabilities not provided for ;-

A Contingent Liabilities

(1) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts work out to Rs 7.23
Lakhs excluding interest on claimed amount (Previous year Rs 7.23 Lakhs)

excluding interest on claimed amount.

(2) Liability if any, on account of Bank guarantee amounting to Rs 1.90Lakh (Previous
Year RS 1.90 Lakh) issued by SBI Jaipur in favour of Kota super Thermal Power

Station

(3) Other cases in which the Company is contingently liable (amounts not
ascertainable except as and where mentioned).

(1)Claims on account of labour/service/land and other matters for the suits
pending in Courts at different stages.

(2) Liability, if any, on account of revision of pay scales of employees covered
under Industrial D.A. Pattern and CDA Pattern.

B Capital Commitments

(1) Estimated amount on account of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account Rs 20.81Lakhs (Previous year Rs 2.13 Lakhs).

Note No. 23:- Other Notes of Accounts

(i)The immovable property ircluding land stands transferred from Gevt. of Rajasthan to
the Company, in succession, in terms of V.T. Krishnamachari's Award under the
provisions of Rajasthan Government Grants Act, 1961 and the pcsition stands

communicated to the Government of India.

(2) The Company has become Sick under Section 3(1)(O) of SICA Act in the year 1999-
2000 and an application has been filed with BIFR. The BIFR has declined for
registration of the Company as Sick under SICA Act. However, the appeal was filed
with BIFR on 3.1.2001 but still Company has not been declared Sick by the BIFR so

far.

(3) No adjustments regarding Deferred Tax has been worked out in view of insufficient
profit in near future and also there is no reasonable certainty for sufficient future
taxable income. Therefore based on prudence Deferred Tax Assets have not

been created.

(4) Provision for impairment of loss as required under Accounting Standard-28 on
impairment of Assets is not necessary as in the opinion of management there is no
impairment of the Company's Assets in term of AS-28. ; '

W e A e




(5) Dur}ng the year a sum of Rs 151.98 Lakh towards interest on interest on loan
received against plan fund written back and shown in prior period adjustment
Note No 21

(6)During the year a sum of Rs 178.48 towards depreciation on Nawa Salt Refinery
shown in Prior Perlod Adjustment Note No 21

(7) During the year a sum of 51.98 Lakh towards excess liability booked in earlier year

written back

(8)The Gudha Salt Refinery has been taken in the fixed assets of the company In the
2014-15 though contractor M/S Pandian Engineering did not supply, installed or
commissioned Machinery and equipment’s as per TOR and still not handed over the
Gudha Salt Refinery after satisfactory trial run .Company has incurred the expenditure
of Rs 49.90 lakhs on behalf of contractor and same are shown in note no 15-Other
Current Assests of Financial statements as 31.3.2020.However the refinery had been
undertaken for operation after incurring the .expenditure as mentioned. Further
Company is also having the Security Deposit of RS 14.85 deposited by contractor in
the Books and shown in note no 8-Other Current Liabilities of Financial Statement as
on 31.3.2021. Therefor it is to noted that an amount of Rs 35.05 ‘iakhs is still

recoverable from M/S Pandian Engineering.

(9) Inspite of action for eviction of unauthorized encroachment taken by the company the
encroach land I.e. 424.80 acare is still under encroachment. The value of encroach
land cannot be ascertain as the land has been given by Govt of Rajasthan on lease
basis for 99 years as per V.T.Krishnachari Award dated 29.04.1961 Company has not
executed the Lease Deed with the Govt of Rajasthan so far. The details of land are as

under:-

. Lease Land 57600 Acares (90 SQ. Miles)
Disputed with Govt of Rajasthan 2648 Acres

Encroached Area 424.80 Acres

. Free hold land 660.35 Acres

Disputed Area 58.24 Acres
Rewan Tiba / Sambhar Lake 16.41 Acres (Case is pending with Court)

Beg Shed Sambhar Lake ~ 18.12 Acres (Case with railway Jodhpur
Sahidpur Gudha Salt 23.71 Acres pending for correction in

Nawa court) -

A
B.
G
D
E.
F
G.
H.

58.24 Acres of land which is disputed in other name but possession with
company out of 2648 Acres of land 292 Acres of land was allotted to the other

parties by Govt of Rajasthan.

The value of land assessed by M/s Protocol Valuer Pvt Ltd, Assets Valuers as on
31-03-2021 is Rs 5006.80 Crore in case of lease land and Rs 351.57 Crore in

case of free hold land.

(10) The company operates the single line of business/product viz. Salt as such
segment reporting is done on a single segment basis.

(11) Disclosu_re as required under in compliance of Accounting Standard-18 on
nRelated Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The required information are given as under:-




Key Management Personnel :

1. Shri ASOK DAS C&MD Additional Charge w.e.f. 01.10.2019 to 4.8.2020
- Shri Kamlesh Kumar CMD w.e.f. 05-08-2020 to 31-03-2021
3. Sh Vikas Yadav, Company Secretary
(Rs in lakhs)
Details of Transactions Key  Management | Hindustan Salts Ltd. Total
Personnel : (Holding Company )

2020-21 |2019-20 |2020-21 |{2019-20 |2020-21 |2019-20

Remuneration 578 L - >.78 .

Other Benefits 1.40 1.40

Purchase of Goods
) Sale of Goods 180.90
Transfer of Assets / Stores -

Loan Received -

| Interest payable 563.01
Share of Corporate Office 181.15
Expenses apportioned by
mindustan Salts Ltd (Net)

}Interest payable to holding
company for earlier year
written back

Share of Corporate Office
Prior  period  adjustment
apportioned by Hindustan
Salts Ltd (Net)

(12) In the opinion of the Management, current assets, loans & advances on the
Approximation. On the value stated if realized in the ordinary course of business and
provisions for all known liability except as otherwise stated are adequate and not in

excess/short of the amount reasonable necessary.

(13) Earning per Share

i | Profit (+) / Loss (-) as per (259.27)
statement of Profit & Loss usual
as the Numerator

Weighted Average Number of
Share

Basic Number of Shares . 10000
Diluted Number of Shares 10000 10000
Face value as per Equity Share 1000 1000
Earnings per equity share:
Basic EPS (in ) 5345.00 (2592.62)

Diluted EPS (in ) 5345.00 (2592.62)

b Y L o




14
( ?:)anzi:iq ?é)rrn?atr)y has considered the possible financial effects that may result from the
b elating to COVID-19 on the carrying amount of receivable, revenue, loans &
ances 'etc.. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the company, as at
the date of.approval of these financial statements, has used internal and external
sources of information on the expected future performance of the company

(15) The information regarding Amount and interest due to suppliers registered under
the MSMED Act are as under '

i €
;Sl. No |Particulars 33 Aoy
1.3.2021  |31.3.2020

49.19

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the
IMSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
Interest due to suppliers reﬁered under the MSMED . ’
Act and remaining unpaid as at year end ' Nil .
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED
/Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

UInterest due and payable towards suppliers registered
under MSMED Act, for payments already made

[Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier
years

‘1 18.97

2020-21 2019-20
(in Rs) (in Rs)
Nil . Nil
Nil Nil
Nil ‘ Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

C.LF. Value of Imports

Raw Materials

Components & Spare Parts

Capital goods

Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Earnings in Foreign Exchange
Remittances in foreign currencies on
account of dividends

Number of Non-Resident
Shareholders

Value of imported and indigenous
raw materials, stores, spares and
components consumed

Nil Nil

Stores, Spares and
Components
% % % (% in Lakhs)
Nil Nil Nil
(Nil)

Raw-material

(a) Imported
(Nil)

(b)

(Nil)

Indigenous

100%
(100%)

100%

(100%)

114.80

N

S A P




e fixed assets of « 1090.59 lakhs (Previous Year ¢
rk in progress) and same has been put in the use
ion/performance of the

(17). During the year the addition in th

35.66Lakhs) (excluding capital wo
and depreciation charged accordingly, though the product

company has not increased substantially.

. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever
necessary.

(19). Figures are nearest to lakh rupees with two decimals.

(vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agarwhl ) (CMDE Kamlesh Kuma|(Retd))

Company Secretary G.M.(F&A) Director . - - Chairman and Managing Director
| | DIN-07182357  DIN- 8884327

ir; terms of our Audit report of even date

ForJ N Gupta & Co
(Chartered Accountanits)
Firm Registration No.006562C
At
(Jagdish Narain Gupta )
Partner

Membership No 400438

Place : Jaipur
" Dated :
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BR & UFIEIT STANT & 78 B gwTd URA™ H Tl forar T @ Ud g9 dRel iffm, 2013 @t
TG |11 & 9N— || & AR Ybe Tl fmar wam 2|

FHRSH

. qafaf
7], oIjdT aY b Yd DI A A HeRT Aial b AGH H P, T AP b ATHY UfhAT AU B |




A Td A AnTa @i Wil aREFEREl 1 AN @ Sreran) ¥ $ @I B w9 H O 99 7 23 5
S &, TATRT R & ST 2 |

. PRTEE

JATARR AMATIH, 1961 & =T T &R TR BRI aTe], AABR & oY UTeT™ HRall 8 Ta STRANTT B FRIfeT
ToIT JMRIATT PR SIRE AR PR &R Td R B ol foxira Refdy favor a1 fafor &1 srerar @@ a1 @] 8
2 B AR W IUEN B A 2| JRAFT FHRT BT dHael I AT dF AT 1T 8 S8l ddb SHD! Igell
e 211 g facia Refay faerer &1 [y &1 e w=fRy & @ U g &1 [lad =gl & fog Reg
fopar e 2 |

Y P FAMT R 3 IV U Afd B IH1AT ARG Wil gd 1H &1 R far Sar 21 v @ [+

ON O\

Ael & MR TR D! AR B IGell B JIMRFIA & STTHR Wrae fhar S 2 |

. Aps yare faawor
I a8 fdavvT <@l AFd YUE—3 H QeI s s [9avv1” el Ugfd & TR daR fhar 1 2|

. aREARET B T

aReefrEl @ o T8 IR @ g facim Rufy favor @ i w e @ € 2| iy B R are
Froi | uRewfE § & 3R S ® O g9 w1 @1 oiEf aRewRi &1 R qed ge axgen ang
IR F ¥ & w9 H WHrd far S 2

. ATRINT IORT & HT ATAE
yfeTd 3T & AR RN o &g O/ a9 ¥ Bl & S99 Y BlpR Urd 9a afve el o
Jafeiae fy SRAT |

. URF SR R =/

gRASTT TR BT T @ R A gREHRE & w9 Qi T ¥ vl 99 yewH gwa forg v favfy @
ITAR URASHT BT AT B & ay H YR /YoiiTd fhar Sram &, e Ik yawe gRT uRASHT &1 9
PRA /AR T B BT 017 forar Srar € ar U uRASHT - AR g 9 9y @ ford vr Hoig foram wan
2, @ B faaRer # ywiRa o e 2 |

A SR AU & gAfe wWR Hee yraei @ 99 ugE @l SRl @ 99 g4 BRIt & IR0 aaAe |1 8l
R g I9g © b g8t At &1 faruen 8 | faxiy faaxoi § sefee dwfral & 9 o a=ar <1 Wiy 8 |9
B DT Ubed BT SIaT & | MbRAG I, IS aad § &1, & feufloril & Aregy ¥ Ydbed fhar S 2 |




31 A4, 2021 B GAC 9§ & forg facfia faaRori wr fewfort
T, I§ B AlPSl DI UHE IR @ oIy S8l Aaegd §Y Td a9 B 3Ndbe] BT Y. JTHRor fHar 1m 2|
& @9 )
fewoft 4. 1: afer goit 31 974, 2021 31 9T, 2020

SISE

% 1000 /— & 20,000 FHAT 39 200.00 200.00
(T af 20,000 FHGT 3F9)
forifia, eifdesT ud ued
1000 /— P 10,000 HHAT 3F
(T a¥ 10,000 AT 37¥T)

AT

feuoft: Heg=i 9 39 A UeR o by € -

* Iugad Y Yof U & W9 H BRIR @ ded YA dhs d ud By A 9 R 2

** f3HId 1.10.1964 BT AR Alecd $HIs dl IRGHRMEN MR arl & AU & Va9 § 9R$G W= 3felq
e Weed fafics @ (SUe WA & @Al S9d gRI AAMIG JAfdadl & i H) o Ued aid
%1,000/— @ 6,000 3 |

kPN FUMHER AT B AR IIee] DRI BT Tasl H IoRAT WPR P gof Jaxl yJdb X 1,000 /— B
4,000 37T

& g )
feoolt &, 2 RfAT wd sl 31 HE, 2021 31 ¥, 2020

(@) Yoirrd W=
URRAS A 1,041.94 1,041.94
SIfST: e a¥ # gwAaxoT - -
f~aq A 1,041.94 1,041.94
@) R goiTa e
YRS A
SfST: =re] a¥ # gAiaxoT

eI : qF a6 # BH ARG g BT FHRISH
HTIE : BN B B9 A RS

(5,832.45) (5,573.18)

gfg /(@) af & fog 534.50 (259.27)

(5,297.95) (5,832.45)

@) St o o= # sl 1.04 0.84
arT (4,235.70) (a,768.61)

** %1.80 oIg PN ARG Goll I WRBNY AFa gRT T ~rd FORiEd & g | TR 5 |

kI qou B gBE D AR P [ AR ST Yied] § IR & S A & FHaAIRGl D oM & forg

Tarfera &Y oIl B

& ar~g #)
oot 9. 3 Srafafd sur 31 914, 2021 31 919, 2020

fBgIM Aleed fol. (RS H¥) | 0T 545.80
SIfeT : Sad W < Sfad s -




 oIrg #)
fRwoft 4. 5: Srafafd uraE™ 31 9T, 2020

B B
@) HHARY ™
1. 4G 8 Har-igha SusH & foy
Ta faRig Rfa faaror & srgaR
ST ¥ & SR Uraer=

HCISY : 99 & SR SU BRIAT AT YA / FHRIG

AT (1)
2. & & AHAPRI B oY
Ta faRig Rfay faavor & srgaR
SfST: 99 & SR ST BRI 1T

HCISY © 9¥ & ARM YA / FHEASH

AT 31 (1+2)

@) s

1. THH & Tlb ¥ BIofd & fov

Ta faxig Rfa faavor & srgaR
SIfST: 99 & SN ST BRI 1T

Terd : a9 & SRE RAT & s el W) gora
TRy : JffaRad yraerd JferRad
i ufafe & AR e wie § | &4 fhar

T (1)

2. U IS /AT 9 | BIold & oIy
Ta fa<ia Refa feror & srgaR
SFeT: a9 & SR ST BRI 1T
gersy : 9¥ & SR FHRNSTT

g ufafe & IgaR e wie § 9 &4 fhar

T (2) - -
T § (14 - -
(1+2) IRT (3+9) 202.13 210.84

* GT b — 15 HHAINRA] b ot & T § HEA 7 A9 TUE1 & SR R IUSTH &l <lfiicd SUA€l gl
DT |




AT

123.91
168.02
147.41

439.34
439.34

153.22
117.81
239.60 510.63

510.63

* GeH, Y U9 HeIH UreRUISOlol SddUdc Ude, 2006 & Sfid SUfer o fewoll w=am 25 (1) ol R =

fewoly & & TS B

& o= #)

fewdh €. 7: 3=y =re] R

31 HT, 2021

EIGE]

31 HTd, 2020
P IABS

SrepIferd FoN a1 gaA aRydadr
g Wiecd fafice & #oT (@RS Hw)
SIrS: ot ISt 3R UR&GEHH A Mafey o & BRI
I Y (GRS B

. RS B BT <

3030.70
3728.82

6759.52

122.75

157.24
158.21

2,702.10
3,805.49 6,507.59
47.56

143.06
119.93

7197.72

6,818.14

& g #)

fewoft |, 7.1: I @7 srafr vg Ry

31 9T, 2021

! FwS

31 ¥, 2020
Pl ABS

IF R H TSl UG RO & G | ORI
Rerfa fAavor o AN &1 Rk 9@ & dag #
1. b DI @
2. b bl R
RS BT ¥ FA FT
H FOT (5 qIe fhwl § rae Ira)
gesy: <rafafer o

el URYFIars] o1 iy oy

19 21 99

3,5676.50
545.80

19 20 99

3,576.50
874.40

3,030.70

2,702.10




31 A9, 2021 &1 fRi Rty faarer & 9rT & w9 # ol sRE=RE 3 s
feooft &, 8— (@w=ufRy, T &R SymRw)
(X g #)

THd S T s IS
gigai / R/ | 3132021 | 3132020 | w@RSH/ | gERISH/ i EL 31.3. 31.3.2021 | 31.3.2020
ARG | RRITATRYT | T AT B IEEQRSIS [EEIRSIN 2020—21 | 20201 Eal Pl
) IR B IR B % forg T
AR HROT FHEMaar | HRUT gigat

4. s

=

53.29 — 53.29 — — 53.29 53.29
570.16 36.30 606.46 367.42 395.30 211.16 202.75
173.79 - 173.79 172.35 172.35 1.44 1.44
129.82 4.36 134.18 110.17 119.54 14.64 19.65
1,174.04 1,012.19 2,106.23 760.60 1,163.01 1,023.22 413.45
1,134.21 — 1,134.21 874.07 919.10 215.11 260.14
161.90 1.39 163.29 129.75 136.18 27.11 32.15
131.59 28.85 159.37 118.17 121.17 38.80 13.42
0.32 — 0.32 0.31 0.31 0.01 0.01
4.52 — 4.52 3.62 3.85 0.67 0.90
29.66 1.02 30.68 26.74 27.69 2.99 292

©|® N[O || AWM= R

=l
alo

266.11 6.48 272.59 202.30 208.30 64.29 63.81
3,829.41 1,090.59 4,919.53 2,765.50 3,266.80 1,662.73 1,063.93

0.46 0.46 0.38 0.40 0.66 0.08
0.46 0.46 0.38 0.40 0.66 0.08

1009.87 110.43 1,102.87 17.43 - - - - 17.43 1009.87
1009.87 110.43 1,102.87 17.43 - - - - 17.43 1009.87
IRT @I)+H(E)+HE) 4,839.74 1,201.02 | 1,10334 | 493742 | 2,765.88 0.44 — 323.36 326720 | 1,67022 | 2,073.88
fisd a¥ & ardg 4785.68 91.16 37.10 4,839.74 | 2,54398 - — - 221.89 2,765.88 | 2,073.88 | 2,241.70

* TSR H 0.03 A R P Yob, 0.10 ORI BIY AL AARES B WY #H, 1.80 WO HfUcd RSd & WY #, 32144 TG oM MR &N AT 3§ JoIg ™ & w9 H |
Ae—1, Feers Avsa & ol f&ie 26.00.80 & AR, 40 I H ST STUNT Y W RGN RIMUT fHaT 717 7 |
2. TR HATAY, RA WEHR gRT AR e TR IMATSIZore YRG0 WAF BI IR YSiNTd & &l & &) gRaaRml § 781 fow a1 8, fRQarr frgear g—

. | faawor WHe GUS 31.03.2021 HT oA 31.03.2021 I BN IE TGS
31.03.2021 BV 31.03.2020 BV
ECE] 207 1.98 0.09 0.09
0.29 0.28 0.01 0.01
0.04 0.03 0.01 0.01
REERCILNIR 1.94 1.90 0.04 0.04
NS g 0.25 0.24 0.01 0.01
T 459 443 0.16 0.16
79 99 B s T H 459 443 0.16 0.16




feweht . o: IR =1q] uReEwaRmEm

(37) <ratafyy @mOR wita g @MRIRd ST odl R @R wiitd any)
JTGRIETT, 3 FHS T
wfere

Hergy: |y AR giftq arg & fog graer (79 99 @ IgER)
(@) JIMRRARTT IMITd I
(@) aRET g (@R aRAeET afRd)

AT

fewoht 4. 10: =re] AREHRRENT (i)

ol (Y€ IYel Y oI TR JTEITRe)
S9 IRT (1)

(eThr e W)

JINYATA T D SYBRUT

CURRI RN

@) =R § <ie
(T /g Il AT I W AT B B))

I9 AT (€) 1,101.62

I9 AT ()

(@) SFa g 9 gpA B TiD
(@M W) SY AT (@) 0.38 0.30
Fel AT (@HIHF+HEH) 1421.13 755.94

*%19.45 G (TTd 9% X 19.84 oIg) P HH IUANN AT (@geH) & forv s1f il &1 uraems =€) fasar rar 8, S
HART WUSR # 2 3R oRdl geddl # dFd R Wid & w9 # Uiy 1Y 2| g e & gaRr &9 Suarh
Hal BT o I I | QT 7, fO9 o7 R % i T ©

BRI SN fhU U AT H % I I (T a9 X YR ARI) JoI Bl I|al A dftord 8, o o [Afaer &
MR TR & Il T eI W foram T 2|

56




17.36

10.33

T

17.36

10.33

* e fRT, SRR 9T Td 9gdR & ST 9 4 9 gfte qen e & orfi| B

X g #)

fewoft 4. 12: Awps 7 95 A9

31 HE, 2021
Pl B

31 ¥, 2020
Pl AHS

e 3R T T9he
JAdbs g fedpe g |

0.31

SIfer ot |

=e], @l |

RICIERSE

TR A I WAV (3 A 9 31fde |afer 5 )

IR | Ih

HHATRYT, SHERI T = DI AT

TR & AR A1afe S # (GHarRal & forg g aftaferd)

0.16

X g )

fewoft | 13: sreurafe o1 vg AR

31 ¥, 2020
Pl ABS

HHATRAT BT 1A
THH R IUIPR & (oY THS AR, AR TR S U Y

0.50

AT

0.50




fewdh 4. 14: 31 =1e] uRwFRMET

[rale S R TSI Tel
I AXBHRI (AU G ATaolid o1l & urd giesfa o

qHE AT I€G B w9 H YT ARG 31rar e fofg g ura g

11.69 31.26

AT 410.34 23555
"Ahe I I D © H W H X Y A (T 99 X I AE) Y[ Hasll bl AUl @ MY & g Y 3R 3D
Qg # A9 ford Ty WA §, S AFDl B [ HRT gafeIy AT a1 (TR uRael) # 781 forg 1y |

® <rg #)
fewoft 9. 15: y=TeE ¥ 3™ T 2020—21 T 2019—20

@ ferg @ fog

RToTed
R B
Vo] faehy 1,932.06
fFraid fasa -
HAMIT TS
o] fasha 480.42 358.20
RRIGREES - -
2,499.15 2,290.26

( oI #)
T 2020—21 T 2019—20

@ forg @ ferg

SEEIEGIER
= TS
= wrfeadi
fafde arfeqar
faed @ wfdd & MR IR el
FHRT Bl [ R ™ ()
FHRIG / 31=AR0T
iy g gad k0T BT UraEr fufeTRad —
fafaer ST 9y aruferRad 0.01 6.49

eRAl & 1fvad FRART @1 Biora smferRad 1010 102.95
T 111.59 228.24
* 31 3 /TSI H X 4.38 ARI YK UG A ST &1 STl & 9 X I aIRI IGal, FHRRT 9 g’ T
ATl &1 Aot & X 42,60 g Wi Al & wifd &, = glaenm Yoo & wfa & (19 99 HA X 8.47 A1,
T X 37.19 G Td X I AE |
** g il (fasp), I AHRRE BT SRR 9 A, STdd, Aquygdd el AUl Ieih Al
saaTe Afferd)

58




7 <Irg #)

feuft & 17: Wi & uRad=
3 forg

ay 2020—21

T 2019—20

% ferg

URMS i

ATIRUT FH0

JTed TH D
Y I
BT Ufshar |

= <ip

HTERUT THdD

ST TH D

39 Sdlq
BT Ufshar |

1,415.75

667.76

whe ¥ 3fg +) /2 ()

(747.99)

14.21

z <rg #)

ool &, 18: =Y R =g

Iy 2020—21

@ fog

T8 2019—20

@ fog

ERERCES]

177.74

180.94

DT BT ADaIDRYT (qd Tl & AN ATBIRAT BT I AHAICI)

9.90

6.85

ToIgN] Aled ATDTe

16.17

6.44

qret et v

ISk

19.65

12.72

ﬂﬂg@a 3@3 SEEL

39.69

124.09

afasy A & fasTe &1 3ee

49.55

42.01

ST g8 9 Wi

2.09

1.94

afasy A g SSIUctes IR uea~e I

2.09

1.94

PINIET

0.82

S Y

0.17

0.07

317.87

377.00

& <rg #)

Ty 2020—21

@ forg

T8 2019—20

@ forg

4.88

767.65

77253




7 <Irg #)

fewoft <. 20: 31 = q¥ 2020—21 q§ 2019—20
& fag & fog

) STed Y (@ feupoft va 22.1) 913.88 775.00

) W 9 EREMG (Q fewoh AeEr 22.2) 200.85 141.86
T ST o (S fewoly Heer 22.3) 181.15 183.82
TR @ (o fewoll der 22.4) 61.42 46.48

) UTaTE Ud Biord (qed fewoly dwer 22.5) 46.50 49.68

) TS @ (@ fewel dw@r 22.6) 25.91 31.24

) o g faazor e (S fewoh 4. 22.7) 155.79 128.40

) 31 fafay e (@ fewoft 6. 22.8) 55.62 16.18
1,641.12 1372.66

/4

3322

4

]

gl

E)

)

20.1 UG FI
IATed 9 Galg A 479.12 361.85
[T e B e (WLuEy) 11.77 14.60
qR&pd THH BT Icara- (SI.UF.IAR.) 62.43 62.21

GRS TS DI Icara (TH.UH.3MR.) 56.47 53.62
faera 9 wifdd =g 279.44 251.28
geel T 5.50 5.50

SISTel ¥ER U4 Aldhl Bl deld Ud IERET 19.15 25.94
913.88 775.00

20.2 IRFT T SERG
T 6.80

SEEICIREIRL 58.57
I FRET 43.86
I T BT IERETT 3263
141.86

& <rg #)
TY 2020—21 IY 2019—20
20.3 BURET PRI T 3 R 2 fore
v A R yematae @3 0.46 0.40
I 0.33 0.29
qreT e w1 0.01 0.01
Hfawr 91 9 SSIveeNs H FaTeid & JeTe 12.66 11.44
Pl Bl ThaldhRol 20.66 945
qad 94.07 106.97
g YA dF [dhed (Sioflens) 5.58 16.03
a1 feerd &1 aRfie
qaqd g Al 13.09
T8 fhvra 3.65
TRET d RG]
PIITTT T I YIS I
ARG /IR |qq8
T

STh, IR T <ThIA
BUTS UG oRgd AT
THAR | WRNERI (Ead aff)
I Y
IRENED
Y




fafSre vd aaiRe TR

ffhcar <l &1 ufagfd

XTHTST h T g

ST MY

g g fadazor =g

=
faea =g

gergy: Ydy ASerh & BRIt gt

fafaer urftaat

ﬁaaw

0.14

183.82

® <rg #)

204 TRIY Y 3R I HEIS SN AT

Iy 2020—21

@ fog

T8 2019—20

@ ferg

0.03

0.03

6.79

1.57

10.07

1249

11.33

11.47

28.22

25.56

8.55

10.45

0.54

0.35

9.09

10.80

0.10

0.11

ST UTGRITeT, 3IYaTel, ATHISTD ITTCdiery BT aH

0.03

0.03

HHATRAT & Fafbedr @ 9 gdTel & @ ufgfd

15.18

10.05

NI, BT d A&l 1% & dd- Ud WIUHIR d Yl gcdie

27.98

22.64

43.29

32.83

Helgy: IRYdTel YTt

1.00 42.29

1.11

T

61.42

feufl: fagd 9 oot omufi @ srerm—arer TRl 5 ST Ad 3R Sy STl T—31aT & ey Y 2|

& <rg #)

205 UTGE Q9 ©iord

qy 2020—21

@ forg

T8 2019—20

@ forg

THH B ITIh Pl BIold & [oT¢ THS B Icid BT JURrd ATH
BICLIEE

59.27

24.63

Sifew: <Ral @ e wr [RaEa giora

10.10

102.95

ST <Ral & i FRARYT IR urar 141 Q1S Uraem=

13.53

11.77

82.90

139.35

gergy: URMI$ 9y

36.40

89.67

T BT W H AT

46.50

49.68

AT

46.50

49.68

* I IRl R ST / 3gAeT & A, oljdl +ifd HAT 7 Pl &< H @A 8¢ a9 & QR X 10.10

RT oI & 1380.356 H.C+1 THdH I FHRIGI fhal 13T |




7 <Irg #)

206 WNIA® I

ay 2020—21

@ fog

Tq 2019—20

@ ferq

BUTS U4 ofg< A

1.81

2.82

TP, dR UG oAl

243

2.75

T Uq PN

4.34

3.09

TR Ud TR Gdg

0.19

0.34

AT YUY

267

5.09

QeI P1 Yoob, AT 9l g AT Y

0.99

fafres va rgaTie MR

3.18

4.28

JfpeTd Pl YA

JDHETT Yo

PR IADBET b

I qeT / <f e el g

IR JHeTH BT YIRS

JMIRE 3HeTh BT UIRAMND

JMARS 3fDherd BT I Vel / Q- Vel &

0.25

BTSN Yo

0.09

97 TR

1.35

ST - U9 GfaeT

4.87

a5 T8 &1 YR

3.66

31.28

HCTSY: JARIATE B Uit

0.04

31.24

& g #)

ay 2020—21

@ forg

Tq 2019—20

& forg

0.29

5.30

12.72

0.01

0.08

Bc Yrdrl

58.08

50.45

ﬁa%rr@aﬁww

92.11

65.15

155.79

128.40

® <Irg #)

20.8 I fafay =g

Tv 2019—20

& forg

Tv 2018—19

@ ferg

$gd FUT g 3 M Y Pl AYRET

2.62

0.02

eIy UIauT= § I elad

0.02

G 9 f[dprd g

3.69

S99 U9 W FOT & ol Yraemd

12.37

fd < /g (C181.0d. 1R AT ied)

0.10

I TR BT el

46.29

55.62

16.18

1,641.12

1,372.66




7 <Irg #)
fewht <. 21: garafdy F™IeH qY 2020—21 Y 2019—20
@ forg & fag
Y I
HHATRAT & IRAH & A 52.75

ITeT I
BHIANC AThd < (q@iare 29) 0.15
TR g ERE(T
TRIY Y G 3G FEINSTD U Y
TR
faep! g faaror R &y
JIDHETDRT Pl YT
JRIBR BT YA
AP UTaET Y JUforiad
'
BIfGST Ul GIRT TG S0 UR AR TSl Yob IIIF (o1l 11
3y (fafder) sma
AT

UqIgie) FAFIS @ URUIE WY g I () =99 (—)

feaofy &, 22— yrafeg 7 & T sHEREF ITAN —
V. AP TR

(1) <mar @ T3 I W e @ AfaRad T 723 I & <, e FFE A WO B w7 H WeR T8 fhar g1 (@1a
Y % 7.23 )

(2) e d% 3% SFSAT §RT BIcT YR A UIAR & U&T H SINI &b TRET % 1.90 AR (7 99 % 1.90 ARI) & Gae
# afi, aft @18 2

(3) 3T ATl TR HFIT @1 MMHRAS Aadl & (S iR 18l afvia g, & sifaRaa ¥ fvea fea o ama =78
2l
(1) =Tt # faffe wRi W s/ ar /g 9T 3 Al A AefT J @ S dfted € |
(2) il HEMs 9 Ud d=aid He s vl UGfd & 3fefiF I aTel SHaRAl # 9a- 719 H Heed & |dy

# i afe &g &)

9. goi wfdegan
(1) Yol @ wR reied {6y ST aret Jrgadl &1 SIHTIa 01T % 20.81 oG (T a9 % 2.13 o)

feqofy 4. 23 — @l W) I fewfory

1. IORYM ARBR IS ARFIH, 1961 & U@e & =iia d1.El. PUMHERN fare Bl Wl & AJAR 4H
AT e FHIRT B IIRMTBRT & [ 3 ISR ARPR F HFAT Bl SRR (AT AT JoI awg Refer 4
WIRT TRHR BT FEITd ST AT 17 |
B ST HRe ARFRH B arT 3 (1)(0) & T HFAl 99 1999—2000 H WU H Ugd g off 3R
AN v foxf g fFaror 9 # gap ureier ua SRR fBar 1 o &iEifie ud foxfa gafmr 9 9 arf
HHET DI W AN HH JARARH B dgd ®or gIffd T8l fhar 8 9y g uheR. & 9He fedid
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